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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Results & Financial performances (BERBBRR 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Results E
Revenue I@N 1,606,205 1,338,920
Profit attributable to owners of the Company KREER AEML ST 187,088 153,923
Basic earnings per share (HK dollars) EXGRAEF BT 0.23 0.19
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) EHRERARBRE GBI 7.0 5.0
Gross profit margin FE 7= 26.1% 27.3%
Net profit margin 3 R R 11.6% 11.5%
Return on equity (Note 1) A&7 (Bl 3 & (et 1) 30.9% 29.2%
Return on assets (Note 2) BERFRE(Hit2) 14.4% 13.5%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) FERASRE(HZ3) 80 83
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) Z W RERE R (M it4) 45 49
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) o ENRERE RS (M iESs) 63 62
Financial position B B AR R
Net current assets MEEEFE 304,412 241,137
Current ratio (Note 6) BN (ff7te) 149.1% 143.1%
Quick ratio (Note 7) REVLL K (M7 7) 108.1% 100.4%
Gearing ratio* (Note 8) BEAGL R (HF8) 33.9% 24.9%
Net gearing ratio (Note 9) FEEAGBLEKFI) 0% 0%

AR 7K [B] 38 HE 3K f2 [ B 1R i T B A I e AR RR B
T 13 (BT LA 100% 71 5

BEBHILEFRERHESFIGUEEREE
H S E T A 100% 515 -

FERBXHEGFREFYESRBE X ERF
JE #3856 K B IA 365 K AT H

B S ENHE X T %F B 5K
BB R FE B A B FIAB65KGTE -

EBEN S IBEE X IEFHE S E
TE B LA G B AF JE A B B B AR I 365K AT
TEBD K I 7 B) B EE B L B B B B A AT
1BEFLA100% 15 »

BREHFIEROEEREGFERUAREEE
BT FEFTA100%51E -

BEEBEBHEREEEAER U EEBEBF
T8 (B3 X 100% &1 & -

FEERBELFREBRERN R REF

Notes: B st -

(1) Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and (1)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

2) Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and 2
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

3 Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average balance of inventory 3
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4) Trade receivable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade 4)
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

() Trade payable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade payables )
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

o

6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and 6)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(7) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7)
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

8 Gearing ratio s calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and 8
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

) Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net borrowings (total borrowings net- 9

off cash and pledged bank deposit) by total equity and multiplying the resulting
value by 100%. Net gearing ratio was zero as net cash of the Company as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 was HK$220,026,000 and
HK$135, 165,000 respectively.

The increase of gearing ratio was due to the increase of total loan compared to
last year. It included a Euro-denominated loan of EUR11.6 million for hedging the
Group’s Euro sales collection risks. Excluding the said loan, gearing ratio as at 31
December 2015 was 17.8%, which was 7.1% lower than that of 31 December
2014. Because the Group had strong cash flow and decreased the operating
loans during the year.

R 7T 77 50 75 B LA 1 25 48 55 75 A% P 15 (8 5% IX
100% 51 & o R20154612 A31H K 20144 12 A
31 H 2 7] &9 3 2 F 58 53 5| 5220,026,000,% 7T %
135,165,000/8 7T * FTLAFEEBEL K A0 -
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LB R20156F12H31HZ EEEEH
K 517.8% 201412831 H T E7.1%
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Financial Highlights (continued)
s E (&)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

AFERA—EEZ DB

HK$'000
FHT
1,800,000
1,600,000
1,400,000
1,200,000
1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000
200,000 :I
0
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——%F —T—=F —T—=F —T—NF —ET—AF
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
__erre LB _pren
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FHT FAET FAT FAT FET
Mold fabrication RARE 378,286 356,245 476,024 540,259 588,800
Plastic components JEBAE MRS
manufacturing 403,464 739,740 721,828 798,661 1,017,405

b=[113

Total et 781,750 1,095,985 1,197,852 1,338,920 1,606,205




TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

‘ I, together with management of TK
Group, will continue to lead the Group
to go ahead by expanding our
businesses through flexible and
prudent strategies, optimising
allocation of internal resources and
further developing the businesses
that deliver additional growth, in order
to further expand market share of TK
Group and improve its business
coverage, generating attractive
returns for shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “TK Group” or the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2015 (the “Year under Review”).

Being one of the world’s leading providers of one-stop integrated plastics
solutions, TK Group provides customised, high-precision and cost
effective molds and plastic products and services to a diverse range of
internationally renowned companies, including one-stop plastics solutions
covering product design and optimisation, mold fabrication and plastic
injection production. With its presence in the mold and plastic industries
for more than 30 years, TK Group has become the most trusted partner
of internationally famous consumer brand leaders. Over the years, TK
Group seeks to meet the demands of consumer brand customers for
plastic designs and products with both functionality and appearance by
persistence of the strategy of developing high-precision products,
continuous improvement of production line technology and pursuit of
high quality.

(continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEHREE(E)

Despite advance of technology at a tremendous pace, as well as rapid
replacement of consumer goods cycle and industry in recent years, TK
Group adheres to the strategy of diversified customers, ranging from
large automobile, medium-sized household electrical appliances
industries to small mobile phones and wearable devices and medical and
health care products industries, laying a solid foundation for its
businesses. To meet the demands of customers from various industries
for high quality and new generation of products with more focus on
appearance and functionality, we believe that only high-tech and high
value-added suppliers could keep up with the pace of the times. In early
2015, we successfully introduced a smart flexible production line with
Industry 4.0 concept to implement highly automatic precision mold
production and strict quality control, together with the Group’s proud
high-precision (MT1) mold production capacity, to provide customers
with high-performance and artistic plastic products, enabling the Group’s
development, product and process to keep up with the times, and
strengthening TK Group’s industry leadership and competitive advantage.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, TK Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately HK$1,606.2 million (2014: HK$1,338.9
million), representing an increase of approximately 20.0% (2014: 11.8%)
compared to that of last year. The Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$418.9 million (2014: HK$365.4 million) with a gross
profit margin at approximately 26.1% (2014: 27.3%). The profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$187.1 million (2014: HK$153.9 million), representing an increase of
approximately 21.5% compared to that of last year. The net profit margin
was approximately 11.6% (2014: 11.5%). Basic earnings per share was
approximately HK$0.23 (2014: HK$0.19).

Looking back at 2015, TK Group was committed to sharpening internal
operation basis, including consolidation and expansion of its customer
base, integration and optimisation of two acquisitions in 2014 and
improvement of production technology. With remarkable results achieved,
the Group recorded encouraging net profit growth of 21.5% under global
economic downturn. The Group has accumulated many internationally
famous consumer brand customers, including various leading industry
brands with rapid growth, such as smart phones, health care and
wearable devices brands. Focusing on and caring about the demand of
customers is a key to maintain close relations with the existing
customers, which will help to promote sustainable development and
growth of the Group. We also relied on high-quality technology and
products to successfully enhance customers’ confidence in us and
secure more orders. During the Year under Review, the Group’s business
in Polycom, an international commercial telecommunications equipment
brand, continued to record growth, driving this business segment to
increase 53.5% vyear on year. Moreover, in addition to continuous
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Chairman’s Statement

provision of existing products to our customers, we also received new
product orders from leading wearable devices and wearable sports
camcorder brands, driving the business segment to increase 11.2% year
on year, reflecting recognition and high conviction of TK Group’s strength
from our customers.

The Group continued to explore new customers with potential in addition
to the existing superior customers. Based on the excellent track record
with many emerging and high-growth industry brand customers, TK
Group was highly recognised and favoured among the emerging
electronic enterprises in Silicon Valley, which helped continue to attract
new customers in 2015, such as a number of American leading smart
home brands, strengthening the Group’s diversified customer portfolio
and sustainable growth.

In order to capture the demand for high-precision plastic injection molds
from the medical and health care business and the huge demand for
ultra-large molds from the automobiles industry, the Group completed
the acquisitions of the assets of Nypro Tool (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen
Nypro Tool”), a multinational tooling company in Shenzhen, as well as
Germany Selig & Béttcher GmbH & Co., KG (“Germany S&B Company”),
a mold manufacturer and distributor in 2014. After consolidation and
optimisation in 2015, the Group has incorporated the production capacity
and customer network of both companies. The former not only
strengthened and enhanced TK Group’s design and production capacity
of medical and packaging mold, but also expanded the Group’s medical
and health care business network. In addition, Germany S&B Company
brought an internationally famous German automobile brand customer to
the Group, which will become a growth driver for the Group’s automobile
mold business and broaden its customer base.

TK Group paid close attention to upgrading of production technology.
Therefore, we introduced a smart flexible production line with Industry 4.0
concept to realise automatic production of precision molds, with aims to
enhance productivity and precision, and further improve the technology
level and additional value of its products. The smart flexible production
line with Industry 4.0 concept enabled the Group to deploy production
lines rapidly and flexibly, and meet our customers’ need for research and
development of new products in a timely manner, resulting in significant
reduction in production costs, such as human resources, materials and
administrative expenses. 2015 was full of challenges. However, with our
sustained efforts, we managed to achieve the target set in last year by
successfully optimising internal operations and resources allocation,
enabling TK Group to establish a more diversified customer network and
reach a more sophisticated technological level, and be prepared well for
stepping into 2016.

(continued)
TERESE(E)

ERRENAFER ﬁm%ﬂT%ﬂL@
BEEmENMRIERIE  FEUED
WMBERF EAZEN2% AIREPHRIE
ENENTUAEENGEREME-

BRIRBEEEP AN KNEE I F &R %
BB EFP EREZENEEEN
SERTEMEEFPNESFSAE RIS
EEZXEVANTEE TR TRA
SAMEZEMOE  BHEAE0ISFHER
SIFEFP WHEEERBLEINEEHERE R
B MEAEENZ T REFAS RA#F
BRE-

BHEERRAAERERH S BE T
BRFRMAETEHBAREANRE
RNFJSK S KREBER2014F 52 5 U B8 7= Il —
25 B B AR N B o2& A ORI BR A
ARV M SRR WEEN —HEER
B3 K 45 35 75 1= B Selig & Bottcher GmbH &
Co., KG ([ % HS&B Company]) ° # %2015
FHNEEGLRELE AEBEERETME
NAIMNEER NI ERPBEKZ -AIERTE
BEREARIESERBELRTEREANRL
SFREERNIN NEZRTAEENEE
AR AN EE R E A4 - b oh - = HS&B
Company & 7 & [ 37 18 — (B B BR &0 & /) 12
BAREmEEF BRALEBAEEEAR
¥ —EER N AEAEERERF
Ao

RISBEFREIBLEERME - B - &
FISIATIRIOBS c EREIELER B
ARETERAGHLEE BREFTERM
BEE YE-TRSERORMAKEN
MImNE - TEAOBM S Z BRI EERE
AEBEARERBEHALEESR A LA
REAEFPHMERMEMT  LEKK

mANER MRME ﬁ%iiﬁﬂﬁ%
P& o 20154 75 i BE &K REERME

—b%%ﬁK%ﬂ%ﬁ'ﬁﬁEﬁéﬁ
EFTTHER KBWEBLELALLERE

RO FRISERAFEEZ LR
FRENMREAZEBENRMKE 58
M2016F {E4f 78 B ZEF -



TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEHREE(E)

The Group is expected to face a more difficult and challenging economic
environment in 2016, with uncertain global economy and China economic
slowdown. Global production orders are more difficult to predict than as
in the past, and industry consolidation will continue to eliminate certain
small manufacturers, which may also impose pressure on price of orders.
To maintain its profitability, the Group will strengthen internal cost control
to reduce costs by more effective use of internal resources.

In spite of overall global economic slowdown, the demand for high-end
consumer electronics and medical and health care products had been
increasing with response to the Age Of Big Health (K& FER ) globally,
and the wearable devices and medical and health care business
segments of the Group continued to record substantial growth.
Furthermore, as stated above, TK Group has been the most trusted
partner of many international consumer brand leaders, both new and
existing customers are full of confidence in the Group’s high-quality
products, so we will maintain a satisfactory volume of orders in the first
half of 2016. Therefore, we believe that the four rapid growth business
segments of the Group will continue to be its growth drivers in 2016.
With regard to production, the Group will continue to strengthen its
internal development and integration, focus on enhancement of
operational efficiency and production quality after the acquisition, and
consolidate the Group’s production infrastructure and ancillary
equipment, so as to further promote highly automatic production and
improve production capacity. We will continue to prudently seek overseas
acquisition opportunities, especially focus on automobile mold
manufacturing industry in North America, striving to enlarge the customer
network and market share of TK Group in the industry.

TK Group’s customer network spreads over Europe, America and
Mainland China, so its revenue and costs will be affected by global
monetary policies. Therefore, the Group has been adopting appropriate
measures to respond in a timely manner. Part of the Group’s revenue is
settled in Euro, while the Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar.
In order to reduce the impact of fluctuations in Euro on the Group’s
revenue, we had decided to borrow Euro-denominated loans for hedging
in the first half of 2015 to minimise the impact. In addition, RMB began to
depreciate since the middle of last year. Since the Group’s production
lines are mainly located in Mainland China, the depreciation of RMB helps
reduce production costs and is beneficial to the Group’s cost
management.
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Chairman’s Statement

Overall, we have confidence in the long-term development of the
Company. TK Group will continue to make use of its strong capacity and
extensive experiences in high-precision molds and plastic injection to
deliver diversified development and continuing and steady growth
together with customers. In the future, |, together with management of
TK Group, will continue to lead the Group to go ahead by expanding our
businesses through flexible and prudent strategies, optimising allocation
of internal resources and further developing the businesses that deliver
additional growth, in order to further expand market share of TK Group
and improve its business coverage, generating attractive returns for
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for the
support of all business partners, customers and shareholders, and the
contributions of the management and all staff of TK Group for the past
year. For bonus income in 2015, due to failure to achieve our profit target
of 2015, three other executive directors and | decided to take the lead in
voluntarily reducing our bonus income in an amount equivalent to 28% of
that in 2014 to reflect our accountability. The decision demonstrates the
determination of the senior management to work and stay together with
the Group in response to a more volatile economic cycle over the year to
come. We believe that, with our dedication and efforts, TK Group will be
sure to achieve further success.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year under Review, the overall mold and plastic injection
industry faced challenges due to global economic slowdown and
continuous economic downturn in China. However, the Group’s turnover
recorded a steady growth under the difficult business environment,
amounting to HK$1,606.2 million in 2015 (2014: HK$1,338.9 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 20.0% (2014: 11.8%). The Group
strived to consolidate and broaden its customer base and enhanced
customers’ confidence in the Group by high quality technology and
products to successfully secure more orders from existing and new
customers, driving the Group’s four business segments, namely
automobiles, medical and health care, commercial telecommmunications
equipment and mobile phones and wearable devices to record strong
growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BIE s ko (8)

Industry 2015 2014 Change
T 29
HK$ million %  HK$ million %  HK$ million %

BEEAERT % BEET % BEET %

Mobile phones and wearable FHE A FESH,

devices B4 2985 223 335 112
Commercial telecommunications 7 2 B iR &

equipment 202.7 15.1 108.5 53.5
Automobiles R E 228.6 17.1 73.8 32.3
Medical and health care o Ko E A GETE 119.9 9.0 83.8 69.9
Household electrical appliances RE 204.3 15.3 -65.4 -32.0
Digital devices HFERE 79.2 5.9 30.9 39.0
Smart home BERE 30.3 2.3 477 1574
Others H1h 175.4 13.0 -45.5 -25.9

1,338.9 100.0 267.3  20.0




TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B E S am Moo i (A8)

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$418.9 million (2014:
HK$365.4 million) with a gross profit margin of 26.1% for the year (2014
27.3%). During the year, for the improvement of production capacity and
accuracy as well as reduction of production cost in an effective manner,
the Group introduced a smart flexible production line with Industry 4.0
concept, enabling automatic production of precision mold, which also
effectively controlled labour costs. During the year, the Group’s employee
benefit expenses accounted for 27.0% of the sales in 2015, down from
28.3% in 2014.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners for the year of
HK$187.1 million (2014: HK$153.9 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 21.5%. The net profit margin was 11.6% (2014: 11.5%).
Basic earnings per share was approximately HK$0.23 (2014: HK$0.19).

Mold Fabrication Business

The turnover of the mold fabrication business division from external
customers amounted to approximately HK$588.8 million in 2015,
representing an increase of 9.0% when compared to approximately
HK$540.3 million in last year, and accounting for approximately 36.7% of
the Group’s total turnover. The overall revenue growth was attributable to
increased orders from new and existing customers, particularly driven by
the significant growth of automobiles and medical and health care.

The Group’s production line of ultra-large standard molds commenced
operation in the fourth quarter of 2014 in the manufacturing of plastic
mold for instrument panels, bumpers and door panels, which brought
revenue contribution to the Group and drove the automobiles business
line to increase by 32.3% to HK$302.4 million. At the same time, the
Group also secured a new internationally renowned American automobile
brand customer during the year, being the first step to tap into high-end
electromobile plastic mold market, laying a foundation for future
expansion of high-end electromobile plastic mold market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In addition to the production line of ultra-large standard molds, the Group
also has a production line of precision molds, covering a number of high-
end consumer electronics businesses, such as commercial
telecommunications equipment, mobile phones and wearable devices,
medical and health care. The smart flexible production line with Industry 4.0
concept introduced in early 2015 enabled the Group to deploy
production lines rapidly and flexibly, and cooperate and make adjustment
in a timely manner to meet its customers’ need for research and
development of new products.

In 2014, the Group completed the acquisitions of the assets of Shenzhen
Nypro Tool, a multinational tooling company, as well as Germany S&B
Company, a mold manufacturer and distributor. During the year, the
Group focused on the integration of the resources of both companies to
optimise their production capacity, enhance the Group’s production
efficiency and technology level in the medical and health care and
automobiles molds businesses, and broaden the Group’s customer base
in the two segments by incorporating their customer networks.

The Group successfully developed a major German automobile brand
customer during the year through the newly acquired German subsidiary,
being the first step to establish a direct business relationship with this
major German automobile brand customer, laying a foundation for further
expansion of automobile plastic mold market in the future.

Plastic Components Manufacturing Business

The turnover of the plastic components manufacturing business division
from external customers amounted to approximately HK$1,017.4 million
in 2015 (2014: HK$798.7 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
27.4%, and accounting for approximately 63.3% of the Group’s total
turnover. The Group has been committing to build a diversified customer
network covering various industries such as household electrical
appliances, mobile phones and wearable devices, medical and health
care, in order to protect the Group from downside risk in a single
industry, while benefiting from rapid growth in specific industries, such as
medical and health care, mobile phones and wearable devices.
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kk{EFD—JLHFFB& Tﬁ(n%)

During the year, the Group’s business in Polycom, an international
commercial telecommunications equipment brand, continued to record
growth, driving this business segment to increase 53.5% year on year.
Moreover, the Group also received new product orders from leading
wearable devices and wearable sports camcorder brands, driving the
mobile phones and wearable devices business segment to increase
11.2% year on year, representing a slower growth in the current year due
to sharp increase of this segment recorded last year. The increasing
demand for medical and health care products along with increased
concern about health products by the general public led the newly
expanded medical and health care business to record significant growth.

Being one of the world’s leading providers of one-stop integrated plastics
solutions, the Group always believes that only high-tech and high value-
added suppliers could keep up with the pace of the times. To this end,
the Group has invested over HK$23 million to install robots in the plastic
injection production lines these years, in order to implement highly
automatic plastic injection production and provide customers with high-
performance and high-quality plastic products. Given higher demand for
accuracy of plastic injection in relation to medical products than other
plastic products, the highly automatic plastic injection production line
enables the Group to enhance the quality and production capacity of
medical products it produces, and thereby, the Group was awarded the
international certification of 1ISO13485 (Medical Device — Quality
Management Systems — Requirements for Regulatory Purposes), a
recognition of the Group for its advanced production technology with
high quality. The Group’s persistence of producing high-quality plastic
products was also identified by internationally famous consumer brand
customers, and was highly recognised and favoured among the emerging
electronic enterprises in Silicon Valley, enabling the Group to become the
most trusted partner of many high-growth industry leading brands.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

OUR CLIENTS

Clients of the Group cover a wide range of industries, from automobile to
household electrical appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices
as well as medical and health care. As a key supplier of molds and
plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group’s orders are widely
impacted by the launch time, popularity and life cycle of products of its
downstream industry clients. However, being engaged in molds and
plastic injection industry for more than 30 years, the Group always sticks
to the strategy of client diversity in order to manage and diversify risks
efficiently. Currently, the Group has been widely recognized as a
trustworthy business partner of various internationally known brands of
consumer goods, including numbers of leading brands in many fast-
growing industries such as smart mobiles, health care and wearable
devices.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND
GOVERNANCE

The national environmental regulations become increasingly tougher. In
response to environmental protection and compliance with national
regulations, the Group has allocated resources in the environment
management system and energy saving system of the production lines,
with an aim to meet the national security and environmental standards.
For sewage treatment, the Group’s spraying waste water will be treated
through a specialised waste water treatment system for recycling. The
solid waste, dye, paint and waste liquor generated in the production
process are treated by professionally certified third-party companies. In
2013, the Group’s environment management system was certified with
ISO 14001:2004 Standard by the Quality Assurance Centre. In addition,
the Group also engages professional testing companies to give a test of
waste water, waste gas and noise in Shenzhen plant on an annual basis.
According to the test reports by professional third-party testing
organisations in June 2015 and October 2015, the waste water, waste
gas and noise discharged by the plant are within the reference emission
limits. For energy saving, we continue to use energy saving technologies,
and the existing plant lighting of mold business has been gradually
replaced with lighting translucent tiles and light-emitting diode.
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In addition to actively promote environmental protection, the Group takes
an active role in many social charities and public welfare activities, such
as Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon and Oxfam Trailwalker,
which the Group has participated in for many years and actively
encourages its employees to attend. As a promoter of Shenzhen
International Marathon, Mr. Li Pui Leung, the Chairman of the Group,
wishes to lead employees to attend the activity to boost their passion for
sports and make sports popular among the society. In addition, in
response to the call for the development of volunteers by the government
of Shenzhen, the Tangjia Community, where the TK Technology Park is
located, recruited members to join its volunteer team in March 2014.
During 2014, there were more than 100 employees registered. The
volunteer team organised by the Tangjia Community provides various
service platforms, including the Guang Ming Street U Station service (3¢
BA AU AR %), the Guangming vigilante service (FRAZE £5%), the 4:30 p.m.
class service (t[2 UL FR=#538) as well as assistance and support to
community activities. The Group is committed to lead its employees as a
whole to give back to the society through kinds of public charity activities
and sports promotion. Meanwhile, the Group always abide by the spirit of
“from the society, to the society”, and therefore established the Dongjiang
Care Fund (BT A0 FE %) in 2010, aiming to help those employees in
Dongjiang with special difficulties, with a total of donation amounting to
HK$339,000. The Company also offers donation to many other social
associations and organizations. In 2015, the Group donated HK$2.06
million in total, including supports to 23 social associations and
organizations, such as the Federation of Hong Kong Shenzhen
Association, the Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong, the
Junior Police Call in Kowloon City District, Young Artists Development
Foundation, Special Olympics Hong Kong, Shenzhen Project Care
Foundation, Charitable Foundation of Shenzhen Guangming New District
as well as donations to 4 middle and primary schools, for the purpose of
helping and addressing the needs of vulnerable groups.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1,606.2 million,
representing an increase of HK$267.3 million or 20.0%, from revenue of
HK$1,338.9 million in 2014, which was mainly attributable to the strong
growth of the plastic components business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The mold fabrication segment revenue from external customers in 2015
was HK$588.8 million, representing an increase of HK$48.5 million or 9.0%,
from revenue of HK$540.3 million in 2014. Due to longer cycle of mold
fabrication, the expansion of production capacity in the fourth quarter of
2014 has not yet brought substantial sales growth in the short run, and
the relevant business units started generating sales in the fourth quarter
of the year. In addition, sales of household electrical appliances of the
Company declined due to unsatisfactory market conditions of the
household electrical appliances industry during the year.

The plastic components manufacturing segment revenue from external
customers in 2015 was HK$1,017.4 million, representing an increase of
HK$218.7 million or 27.4%, from revenue of HK$798.7 million in 2014.
With the increased demand for high-precision plastic components and
the transformation of the highly automatic production strategy, the Group
has made structural adjustments to its customers of plastic components.
During the year, sales in the mobile phones and wearable devices
industry, the medical and health care industry and the commercial
telecommunications equipment industry recorded strong growth.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$418.9
million, representing an increase of HK$53.5 million or 14.6%, from gross
profit of HK$365.4 million in 2014. The increase was mainly attributable
to the strong sales growth of the plastic components business and the
increased gross profit margin for plastic components resulting from
efficiency improvement.

Segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication dropped from 34.3% in
2014 to 25.4% in the current year, which was primarily due to: 1) the
Group completed production capacity expansion in the fourth quarter of
2014, such as establishing a new business unit specialising in ultra-large
standard molds, a highly automatic precision mold fabrication business
unit and Longgang branch office (positioned as packaging and medical
business unit). Due to longer cycle of mold fabrication, it is difficult to
realise economic benefits in the short run, which affected mold fabrication
segment gross profit margin to a certain extent; and 2) as Europe is one
of the key regions where the customers of the mold fabrication segment
are located, segment gross profit margin for mold fabrication was partly
affected by depreciation of the Euro. In order to minimise the effect of
fluctuations of the Euro on the Group, the Group borrowed a Euro-
denominated bank loan equivalent to the amount of the Group’s existing
orders from Europe in April 2015 so that its Euro assets substantially
approximate Euro liabilities, to effectively hedge the effect of fluctuations
of the Euro on the Group. Furthermore, the transactions concerning
orders signed by the Group before the sharp depreciation of the Euro will
be gradually completed in the first half of 2016, thus the impact of
fluctuations of the Euro on the Group will be weakening in 2016.
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Segment gross profit margin for plastic components manufacturing
increased from 22.5% in 2014 to 26.4% in the current year. The increase
in gross profit margin was primarily attributable to increase of equipment
utilisation rate due to business growth driven by structural adjustment to
the products, as well as enhanced efficiency resulting from automation
investments.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$22.2
million, representing an increase of HK$3.6 milion or 19.3% from
HK$18.6 million in 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to new
government grants of HK$5.4 million secured by the Group during the
current year.

Other (Losses)/Gains — Net

Net other losses for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$1.5
million, representing a decrease of HK$5.6 million, from net other gains of
HK$4.1 million in 2014. In order to minimise the effect of fluctuations of
the Euro on the Group, the Group borrowed a Euro-denominated bank
loan equivalent to the amount of the Group’s existing orders from Europe
in April 2015 to effectively hedge the effect of fluctuations of the Euro on
the Group, resulting in decreased exchange gain/loss.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$82.7
million, representing an increase of HK$20.0 million or 31.9%, from
HK$62.7 milion in 2014, primarily due to the increase in sales
commission and transportation expenses which aligned with the growth
in sales.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
HK$147.1 million, representing an increase of HK$13.0 million or 9.7%
from HK$134.1 million in 2014. The increase was primarily due to: (1) the
increase in labour costs resulting from annual salary adjustment and the
increase in management personnel resulting from capacity expansion; (2)
the increase in operating lease payments as the Group moved to the new
administrative office building during the year; and (3) the increase in
advisory and legal service expenses as the Group increased enterprise
management consulting investments during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Finance Income/(Costs) — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$4.8
million, representing an increase of HK$5.7 million, from net finance costs
of HK$0.9 million in 2014, primarily due to gains on purchase and
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$27.5
million, representing a decrease of HK$9.0 milion or 24.6% from
HK$36.5 million in 2014. The decrease was primarily due to both of the
Group’s principal mold fabrication company and Shenzhen principal
plastic components company obtained the National New and High
Technology Enterprise certificate during the year and enjoyed a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15%.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was HK$187.1 million, representing an
increase of HK$33.2 million or 21.5% from HK$153.9 million in 2014.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a good financial position during the year. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$304.4 million (31 December 2014: HK$241.1 million). The Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$320.0 million (31
December 2014: HK$266.5 million). The current ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2015 was approximately 1.5 (31 December 2014: 1.4).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$605.5 milion (31 December 2014: HK$526.7 million). The gearing
ratio (which was calculated by dividing total loan amount by total equity
amount of the Group) as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
33.9% (31 December 2014: 24.9%). Such increase was primarily due to
the Group’s borrowing of EUR11.6 million from bank for reducing the
exchange risk of the Group’s Euro-denominated sales proceeds
receivable from its customers in Europe during the year. Excluding such
loan, gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was 17.8%, lower than that
as at 31 December 2014, primarily due to decreased operating loan as a
result of sufficient fund flows of the Group as well as the increased equity
as a result of profits earned during the year.
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BEENmADIT(E)

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE EEZHMRR
The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below: NEFBEERNHAR RO T -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 1 year 1F AR 137,288 84,729
Between 1 and 2 years 1229 K 30,587 24,628

Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F R 37,464 22,004

205,339 131,361

An analysis of the Group’s key liquidity ratios as at 31 December 2015is 20156124318 A EEN T ERH E

as follows: SLEESWET :

2015 2014
Inventory turnover days (Note 1) FEBSXE(WE1) 83
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) B 5 W RE RS RE(iE2) 49
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B 5 EMNRBRBERE (M E3) 62
Current ratio (Note 4) mEN K (it 4) 143.1%
Notes: it -

1. Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average balance of inventory 1. FEABXETIEFE TFHE0R A BF
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. JE 8 85 & PR 7K B LA 365 K i E o

2. Trade receivable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade 2. B EWNIFAEXET1ZTF B 5 E KN
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BRI BB F WA FBTELA365 K5 & -

3. Trade payable turnover days is calculated based on the average trade payables 3. BZEMNAIEREXE T 12 F15E Z A
divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. IH B LA B F R 5 B B AN BB X 365K AT
o

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and 4. I EIETEEERUTE A EB G
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. 1B FLA100% 51 & -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s inventory turnover days was 80 days, which
was comparable to that in 2014.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade receivable turnover days was 45 days,
representing a decrease of 4 days as compared to that in 2014, which
was primarily due to the decrease in trade receivable balances as at 31
December 2015 as compared to that as at 31 December 2014 in spite of
overall sales growth as the Group strengthened its credit control and
collection management of accounts receivable.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade payable turnover days was 63 days,
which was comparable to that in 2014.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current ratio was 149.1%, which
was comparable to that as at 31 December 2014.

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2015 are set out in Note
24(a) to the financial statements.

BEEN W KkDT ()
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B E S am Moo i (48)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with
respect to the HK dollar, US dollar, Euro and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always been of
concern to the Group. Foreign currency hedging of the Group has been
managed by our chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group’s chief
executive officer. In accordance with our hedging needs and the then
foreign exchange situation, the Group’s chief financial officer would
collect and analyse information regarding various hedging instruments
and determine stop-loss thresholds. The Group’s chief financial officer
would then collect quotations from various banks as to the financial
instrument and present such quotations to the Group’s chief executive
officer, who would then evaluate and make a decision as to whether to
enter into the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, save as the Euro-denominated
bank loan, the Group had not entered into any hedging agreement.

Euro substantially declined during the second half of 2014. As the
European market is one of the key markets for the Group’s mold
fabrication segment, in order to hedge the risk of depreciation of the
payments received from European customers, the Group’s chief financial
officer collected information on hedging instruments for analysis, having
taken into account of the Group’s business operations, the Group
decided to adopt the Euro-denominated loan to hedge the risk of
depreciation of the receivables from Euro-denominated orders in the
future.

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and US dollar. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were
primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. The Group
will closely monitor the exchange rate movements and regularly review
the structure of its balance sheet so as to mitigate the expected
exchange rate risk.

5 B L B ' 32
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group’s major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar, Euro,
HK dollar, and RMB and the Group’s major expenses are principally
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the recent depreciation of RMB has a
positive impact on the Group’s operations. The Group does not enter
into any agreement for RMB hedging purpose. During the year, the
Group adjusted its cash structure in due time due to significant
devaluation of RMB, and cash and bank balances were primarily
denominated in US dollar and RMB.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company during the
year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary shares and other
reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2015 are set out in
Note 30(a) to the financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 20 December 2013.
Net proceeds from the initial public offering totalled approximately
HK$268.0 million (including the net proceeds from the exercise of the
over-allotment option which took place on 15 January 2014). During the
year, a total of HK$72.4 million had been applied to the Group’s capacity
expansion, research and development and operation need.

BEEN WM (E)
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B E & am Mo A (

75)

NE=

The table below sets out the use of net proceeds from the initial public
offering and the unutilised amounts as at 31 December 2015. All
unutilised proceeds are placed with licensed banks in China and Hong

TR#EINTE

NN

B 2% & A

SREFED

Big AR R2015E12A31B M k8 A &
H-FTEABARENERRTREEEFS

Kong. B F5 R ERAT ©
Use of Proceeds FEREBEAR
Utilised Unutilised
% of total amounts amounts
amount Net proceeds 2015 2015
H# % FERE CBHAXE KRBAXE
MED L R 20154 20154
(HK$ milion)  (HKS$ milion)  (HK$ million)
(BE8A8L) (B8%T) (Bg8%L)
Establishing a new business unit 3% 37 8 A B2 48 B
specialising in ultra-large MEEEM
standard molds 19% 51.9* 51.9 —
Upgrading mold fabrication FHRR R BLERE
capabilities 14% 37.1* 371 —
Expanding Shenzhen plastic wWRARYF B AN
components manufacturing BUEE R
capacity 22% 59.4* 59.4 —
Expanding Suzhou plastic wrREIMN B AN
components manufacturing Bl ERE
capacity 17% 44.5* 11.5 33.0
Strategic acquisitions of other RES W BB H bR A5
mold fabricators & 11% 29.5* 16.4 13.1
Research and development EER A 8% 21.6* 21.5 —
General working capital —REEES 9% 24.1* 241 —
100% 268.0* 221.9 46.1

* On 15 January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the sole global
coordinator (on behalf of the international underwriters) of the global offering, partially
exercised the over-allotment option, pursuant to which the Company issued
26,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of HK$1.25
per share. The allocation of the net proceeds of HK$32.4 million was adjusted on a
pro rata basis as set out in the section headed “Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 11 December 2013 (the “Prospectus”). As a result, the net
aggregate proceeds was increased from HK$235.6 million to HK$268.0 million.

The use of proceeds shown above is in line with the intended use as set

out in the Prospectus.

© R2014F1AIGH 2 REFEECHEXRZKBAA
(REXEREHER) BEEF(BE)BRD A
DITIERESEIIRIE - UM - AR A AR IE (B AR
1.25% 7T % 7726,600,000 % % fZ BT {H 0.1 T 2 &
AR o AT N B FRES2.4 8 BB Tig A X a] A HY
B201BF12AMARERER([BREZDAT
RHEHR G —ETE A | EEFHZESE - A
W TS TB R B A B 2356 5 & B LB M=
268.0 8 &L °

FiSRERCEBREERFFNETAS
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue suitable
projects to capture the potential growth of the Group’s business in the
coming years in the manner set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Such source of funding would
be primarily from the net proceeds from the listing, the Company’s own
funds and bank borrowings.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 3,273 full-time employees (31
December 2014: 3,265) and had 594 dispatched workers dispatched to
us from third party staffing companies (31 December 2014: 681).

The Group’s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent directors and
employees. The Group believes the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The Group
has put in place a share option scheme for its directors and employees in
a bid to provide a competitive package for the Group’s long term growth
and development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work
ability and personal effectiveness.

We have implemented training programmes for the employees to meet
different job requirements. We believe that these initiatives have
contributed to increased employee productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, we make contributions to mandatory
social security funds for the benefit of our PRC employees that provide
for pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
housing funds.

BIEE S wm koo i ()
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B E S am Moo i (48)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has made no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

OUTLOOK

Against the backdrop of uncertain global economy, 2016 will be a
challenging year. Weak global economy and volatile stock market
increase uncertainty to the consumer market, which may adversely
impact the demand for the Group’s downstream high-end brands of
consumer electronics and automobiles owing to negative consumer
sentiment, hence indirectly affect the Group’s orders for the coming year.
Further, sustained economic slowdown in China, continuous rising in
operating costs, together with foreign exchange fluctuation caused by
currency policies in various countries cast shadow over exports and
manufacturing industry. Certain smaller manufacturers in the industry
face the risk of going bankrupt, which may lead to a vicious price
competition. To maintain competitive strength and profitability, the Group
will strengthen internal cost control so as to enhance its production
efficiency.

Since operation of the first highly automatic precision mold and smart
precision mold production line with Industry 4.0 concept commenced in
early 2015, the production line has been more efficient and flexible to
make full use of resources, which led to a reduction of production
materials and management expenses by 12% as well as an improvement
of effective operating efficiency from 60% to 90%, reducing the overall
manufacturing cycle of mold fabrication and enabling the Group to meet
order requirements of its customer more rapidly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In spite of domestic and international economic slowdown, the demands
for high-end consumer electronics and medical and health care products
had been increasing by benefiting from the development of the Age Of
Big Health (K2 ERFFL) globally, and the wearable devices and medical
and health care business segments of the Group continued to record
substantial growth. Moreover, after optimisation and consolidation of the
two acquisitions in 2014 (including Shenzhen Nypro Tool and Germany
S&B Company) in an orderly manner, the Group has successfully
incorporated the production capacity and customer network of both
companies by establishing a new customer base for high-end medical
supplies and an internationally renowned German automobile brand,
which will bring significant contributions to the Group in 2016. Together
with a newly exploited American leading smart home brand, the four
rapidly growing business segments of the Group will continue to be its
growth drivers in 2016. In addition, the Group will continue to prudently
seek overseas strategic acquisition opportunities and explore projects
that have synergies with the existing businesses, especially focus on
automobile mold manufacturing industry in North America, so as to
enlarge the customer network and market share of the Group in the
industry.

DEVELOPMENTS AS TO DEFECTS TO
LAND TITLE WITH RESPECT TO THE
SHENZHEN TANGJIA PLANTS

Reference is made to the Prospectus and the announcement of the
Company dated 20 March 2014. Unless otherwise defined herein,
capitalised terms used in this sub-section shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Prospectus. As the Bureau of Urban Planning and
Land Commission of the Shenzhen Municipality (ZJIT R EIE+E) is
examining policy proposals regarding the conversion of land use from
high-technology project to commercial use by payment of land premium
for submission for the approval of the municipal government, pursuant to
the instructions of the Land Bureau, TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. (“TK
Technology (Shenzhen)”) will submit the written application to convert the
green-type property ownership certificate into the red-type property
ownership certificate after the promulgation of the relevant policy.
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kk{EF D—JLHFFB& Tﬁ(n%)

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Properties — Plans to
Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties” of the
Prospectus, the Company has contingency arrangements in place and
will adopt such measures when it is necessary. Such contingency
arrangements include relocating to the Backup Plants by exercising the
Company’s right to request the Backup Plants Landlord to enter into the
formal lease agreement with the Company within 15 days from the
Company’s notice to the Backup Plants Landlord for one or more of the
Backup Plants pursuant to the Pre-lease Agreements. Towards the
expiry of the Pre-lease Agreements, in the event that TK Technology
(Shenzhen) has yet to convert the green-type property ownership
certificate into red-type property ownership certificate, the Company shall
seek to either renew the Pre-lease Agreements or engage another party
for a similar arrangement. For details of the contingency arrangements,
please refer to the section headed “Business — Properties — Plans to
Resolve Risks Related to Certain of Our Leased Properties” of the
Prospectus. The Company has renewed the Pre-lease Agreements until
31 December 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 56, is the chairman of the Group. Mr. Li is one of
the founders of the Group and was appointed as an executive director on
28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of the Board and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for
the overall management and strategic planning of the Group. He has
accumulated more than 32 years of professional experience in plastic
mold fabrication and plastic injection molding and also experience in
business management in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director of
the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY in Hong
Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold fabrication
business into PRC in 1992 and moved the operations in Shenzhen, the
PRC. Mr. Li was elected the “Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of the Year” from
Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds several social titles,
including serving as a committee member of Shenzhen Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee member
of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council Foundation, the Chairman of
Kowloon City District Road Safety Campaign Committee, the vice
chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the
vice president of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association,
the executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commmerce, and
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming New
District. On 16 June 2014, Mr. Li was appointed as the honorary
president of The Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association. In July
1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe Lulan Primary School in
Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained a middle school graduation
certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling shareholder and director of both
Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company)
and Lead Smart Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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EEMEREEE(E)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, aged 54, is the executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also the member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has approximately
27 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. He was appointed as executive director of the Group on 28
March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation and implementation
of the business plan of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung
acted as a buyer in National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May
1985 to August 1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May
1987. From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the
Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible for
operation management for the molding business. He served as the
managing director of the Group since 2000, mainly responsible for
business development and the daily operations of the Group’s business.
Mr. Yung graduated from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree of Science in
Engineering in November 1983. He also graduated from the Centre of
Buddhist Studies of the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of
Hong Kong with a Master’s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November
2008. Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company), and the
controlling shareholder and director of Cheer Union Development Ltd. (a
substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 54, is the executive director of the Group. He
is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has approximately 32
years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic injection
molding. Mr. Lee together with Mr. Li Pui Leung (a controlling
shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company)
established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY, in 1983. He has been
holding the position of manager, mainly responsible for procurement for
the Group. From August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the
EMBA training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China,
and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained
a degree of master of business administration from the University of
Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and director
of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the
Company), the controlling shareholder and director of Normal Times
International Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), and the
younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director
and chief financial officer of the Group on 27 November 2013. Mr.
Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as a corporate financial controller
and was mainly responsible for the finance, taxation, audit and investment
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at
Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”)
and served as financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacture
company, and manufacturing companies listed in Hong Kong and the U.S..
He has accumulated 28 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (the predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in November 1987 with a major in accounting, and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, B8s Jp, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 November
2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Chung obtained a doctoral degree in engineering
from the University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010 and
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from City University of Macau
in September 2012. He was appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2010. He was
awarded an honourary doctorate of business administration by the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007 and an honourary degree,
Doctor of the University, by the University of Newcastle, Australia in July
2006 respectively. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
Medal by the Hong Kong SAR Government effective on 1 July 2011. He
was also appointed as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong SAR
Government effective on 1 July 2005 and won the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Award in 1997. In November 2014, he was further awarded
the Industrialist of the Year.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to social services, the advancement of
industry. He has been the Honourary Chairman of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries since 5 July 2013. In addition, Dr. Chung holds positions
in a number of Hong Kong SAR Government advisory committees and is
also an active member of many social committees and associations.
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Dr. Chung had been an independent non-executive director of Kin Yat
Holdings Limited (stock code: 638), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 30 January 1997 to 24 August 2014. He had also been
an independent non-executive director of KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3816), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from 22
September 2012 to 26 August 2015. He is a co-founder and currently a
non-executive director of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock
code: 669), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also been
an independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 927), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
since 1 April 2014.

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from the University of Sydney, Australia
in May 1988 and a master of commerce specialised in finance from the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1991. Mr. Ho was
awarded as Chartered Financial Analyst by the Institute of Chartered
Financial Analysts in September 1998 and is a CFA charterholder. Mr. Ho
has previously served as Head of China Research, Senior Research
Analyst and Vice President in Institutional Equities in international financial
institutions, including Credit Lyonnais, JP Morgan and HSBC. Mr. Ho
joined HSBC Group since November 2004. In June 2008, he was
appointed as Head of Research, China, serving and acting as the
representative in the Beijing Representative office of HSBC. As at January
20183, Mr. Ho worked as a Hong Kong China Equity sales director for
HSBC. During the period from November 2013 to 31 March 2014, Mr.
Ho had been an independent non-executive director of Evershine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho had also been an
executive director of Fifth Element Resources Limited, a company
previously listed on the Australian Securities Exchange with the stock
code FTH, which has delisted starting from 24 April 2015. Since 10
October 2014, Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director
of BBI Life Sciences Corporation (stock code: 1035), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Since 5 March 2015, Mr. Ho
has been an independent non-executive director of Tsaker Chemical
Group Limited (stock code: 1986), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange starting from 3 July 2015. Starting from August
2015, Mr. Ho became the Chief Financial Officer and joint company
secretary of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 November 2013. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of both the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong and China and has over 32 years of experience in auditing
and providing support for initial public offerings and acquisition
transactions. From July 1978 to June 2011, Mr. Tsang worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Tsang received a
bachelor’s degree in business administration from Chinese University of
Hong Kong in June 1978. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 1991, a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
May 2004 and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants since March 1989.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 133),
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (stock code: 460), China
Animation Characters Company Limited (stock code: 1566) and Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as Madex
International (Holdings) Limited) (stock code:231). Mr. Tsang is also an
independent director of Agria Corporation (a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange; stock code: GRO), and a director of PGG
Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New Zealand Stock
Exchange; stock code: PGW). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-
executive director of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2078) from January 2013 to January 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 49, joined the Group in July 2014 as corporate
financial controller, and is responsible for the Group and plants finance
operation. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for a company listed in
the U.S. and was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance
affair. He has approximately 24 years of experience in auditing and
finance. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. He has also been a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2000.
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Mr. Lui Shit Chun, aged 51, joined the Group and was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group in March 2011, responsible for the overall management of the
plastic components manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lui had worked in the plastics industry for approximately ten years
and has worked as the operation manager of Nypro Hong Kong Ltd. Mr.
Lui graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
1994 with a higher certificate in manufacturing engineering (plastics). He
obtained a master’'s degree in procurement management from the
University of Strathclyde (distant learning) in the U.K. in October 2007 .

Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 36, is the general manager of the standard
mold business units of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 2002,
and was appointed as the deputy general manger of the Group in
January 2009, responsible for the development of the mold fabrication
business, project management and the management of affairs in respect
of technology, quality and sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr.
Lu was appointed as the general manager of the Group, he is responsible
for the overall management of the standard mold business units. Mr. Lu
graduated from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 2000 with
a diploma of high molecular material machining specialised in mold
design and manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of
master of Business Administration in Executive Management from the
Royal Roads University.

Mr. Bergstrom, Carl Thomas, aged 62, is the general manager of the
performance mold business units of the Group and is responsible for
performance mold business units. Mr. Bergstrom has more than 35 years
of experience in injection molding and mold fabrication. He was the
founder and owner of Toolcad AB founded in 1985, which was sold to
Angpanneforeningen AB in 1995. Prior to joining the Group in September
2007, he was the managing director of Perlos Precision Molds (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd. Mr. Bergstrom completed a diploma in mechanical engineering
from Sven Eriksonskolan, Boras in Sweden in June 1976.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 39, is the chief marketing director of
the plastic components manufacturing division of the Group. Mr. Lok
joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed as the chief
marketing director of the plastic components manufacturing division of
the Group. He was mainly responsible for sales and marketing affairs of
the plastics components manufacturing division. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lok had approximately eight years of experience in plastics
industry. Mr. Lok previously served as the application development
manager of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Lawrence Allan Arquette, aged 49, is the marketing director of the
mold business units of the Group and is responsible for marketing. Mr.
Arquette has more than 24 years of experience in injection molding and
mold fabrication. He joined the Group in November 2015. Mr. Arquette
was granted the Mold maker qualification by the Ontario government in
Canada in June 1994.

Mr. Xing Fu Zhi, aged 39, is the internal audit manager of the Group. Mr.
Xing joined the Group in November 2011, and was appointed as the
internal audit manager of the Group, responsible for the internal audit of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xing had approximately 13
years of experience in finance and audit. Mr. Xing has held positions such
as assistant accountant in a Wal-Mart China company, senior internal
control consultant in an IBM joint venture in China, finance manager and
internal audit manager in Hitachi GST China. During his service in IBM
and Hitachi, he was involved in a number of projects including ERP
implementation and SOX compliance. Mr. Xing became a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified internal
auditor of The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2009. Mr. Xing
graduated in June 1998 form Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC with a
bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in auditing. He also obtained
the Degree of Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The
University of Manchester in November 2013.

Ms. Diana Tsang, aged 41, joined the Group on 1 March 2016 as
human resources director, and is responsible for the Group’s and plant’s
human resources management work. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked for several enterprises of the FORTUNE Top 500, such as Jabill,
Philips and Mars. She graduated from Jiangxi Nanchang University and
obtained Human resource management division intermediate certificate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 53, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa” for further information.
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TtEERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for
the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies
and implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business. The Board is committed to
strengthening the Group’s corporate governance practices and ensuring
transparency and accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2015. Key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are summarized below.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ dealing
in the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN
GUIDELINES FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”),
governing securities transactions by employees (including directors or
employees of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company) who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company and/or its securities.
No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting 4 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are expressly
identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.
Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers, none of
the members of the Board is related to one another.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business and implementing objectives,
policies, strategies and business plan of the Group approved and
delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of having
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experience and independent judgment to the
Board and they are invited to serve on the Board committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board meeting, taking the lead
in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in the said Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term, subject to
renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years. The appointment
may be terminated by either party by not less than 1 month’s written
notice. Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
is appointed for a term of 1 year.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing the
independent non-executive directors.

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. In addition, any
new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office only until the first general meeting after appointment, and
any new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company. The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders at the respective general meetings.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”),
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong will retire at the AGM pursuant to the Articles provisions stated in
the foregoing paragraph. All the above retiring directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Board and the
Nomination Committee recommended their re-appointment. The
Company’s circular, sent together with this annual report, contains
detailed information of the above retiring directors as required by the
Listing Rules.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board is also responsible for implementing policies in relation to
financial matters, which include risk management and internal controls
and compliance, if applicable. In addition, the Board reviews the financial
performance of the Group, approves investment proposals, nomination
of directors to the Board and the appointment of key management
personnel. These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to
the shareholders of the Company, the duties to act honestly and in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times and to avoid
conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations. Any director may request for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility for
performing corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee has reviewed and
monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration function of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to the full
Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest of a substantial
shareholder or a director, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, share issuance and distribution of
dividend, and approval of financial results and corporate strategies. The
Board will review those issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and he/
she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing directors are continually
updated on changes and developments to the Group’s business and in
the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing
process. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for record.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the directors complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in continuous

professional training as follows:

BEAFHAYH EF—HETEEEAR
SFRIZ SFRIMGR X EABSMK - 2EUTHE
B

Mode of participation

s EER
Name of director a b c d
E=pE
Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHR &L Vv v Vv Vv
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEMEE Vv Vv Vv Vv
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE vV v
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RFERE v vV Vv
Independent non-executive directors: BIIFHTESE -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EETEL v vV Vv
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung ] BB L A v Vv v Vv
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong g Vv v v

a: Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company
relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws

and regulations.

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company
Secretary/the Company’s management on the Group’s business,

operations and corporate governance matters.

C: Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their
duties and responsibilities, organised by professional firms/

institutions.

d: Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications
on subjects relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out below:

TEERRE (B

ESHERR

REBEENEE2015F12A31 B IEFEHT
MARREEGREZTGZETERUR
R RE BRI T

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE EERE

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

R =R

EEnR EEg ENZEE® FMEEE REEEE® EFKE

Executive directors: HITESE :

Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A& 6/6 N/ATERH N/A i A 11 11

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael  §j32 # 5t 4 6/6 N/ATER 2/2  N/A R@EmH 1/1

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE 6/6  N/A i@ N/AR@EA  NA TER 1/1

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa SRS ERE 6/6  N/A TEF NATEA  NATEA 1/1
Independent non-executive BIHNITESF -

directors:

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFIE LT 6/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung AR B & 6/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong EH AL 6/6 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of executive
directors during the Year under Review.

o EREFAEESEFEBIIEHR
TEFERTT -RERARTEZHESB
/RTH’] Elﬂﬁa °
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request. All
the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Mr. Li Pui
Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-
executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least once in any financial year and to make recommendation
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become Board
members and makes recommendation to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, Board diversity, the integrity, experience, skills and professional
knowledge of the candidate and the amount of time and effort that the
candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.
External recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.
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According to the diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company,
the Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience) for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of each Committee member
are set out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”)
and performed the following major works:

—  Review of the policy for the nomination of directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

—  Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors standing
for re-election at the 2015 AGM; and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s independent
non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 4 members, namely, Dr. Chung
Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration proposals of all
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member
are set out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”)
and performed the following major works:

—  Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;
—  Access the performance of executive directors;

—  Review and renewal of the appointment letters of independent non-
executive directors;

—  Review of the remuneration package of the directors; and

—  Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior
management for the year 2015 and the proposed salary increment
for the year 2016.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including those
members of senior management who are also executive directors, by
band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

REZE2016F12A31BILFEER HFMEZ
B2ARTMASH(SZEEEKRENTEE
AEE N EX[ESH e —&) Wi
TTTIHEBI:E:

I\

- BEAAEEOHMHBR RS
- HERITEEXE:

- EHUMEEBUNNTERZRMEES:

- BAEFZHEM R

- ERENEEReHNETEE2015FE
ZIEEL 2016 F B 2 i H © RIE o
BECEEARATRTAENEBISE &
MEBEERE (BRERBETHATEENS
HEEREXE)NE £2015F12A318 Lt
FEZFEHFMIZER 2EHOT

Number of individual

M4 Bl (B ) A
500,000—1,000,000 4
1,000,001-1,500,000 _
1,600,001-2,000,000 1
2,000,001-2,500,000 3
2,500,001-3,000,000 1

3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members, namely, Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung, all are independent non-executive directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual terms raised by the external auditors before
submission to the Board.

—  To review the relationship with external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

— To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee has held
3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee member are set
out in above section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records”) and
performed the following major works:

—  Review and discussion of the annual audited financial statements,
results announcement and report for the year ended 31 December
2014, the related accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and the relevant audit findings, the report from the
management on the Company’s internal control and risk
management review and processes, and recommendation of the
re-appointment of the external auditors;

—  Review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions and the
compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided by the
Company’s controlling shareholders;

—  Review of and monitoring the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report;
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—  Review and discussion of the interim financial statements, results
announcement and report for the six months ended 30 June 2015,
and the related accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;

—  Review and discussion of the renewal of the Company’s continuing
connected transactions;

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan;

— Review of the internal control performance and effectiveness; and
—  Discussion of the latest amendments to the Listing Rules.

The external auditor attended three of the above meetings to discuss
with the Audit Committee members on issues arising from the audit and
financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils the
qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules. Biographical
details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and Senior
Management” section in this annual report. During the year ended 31
December 2015, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 83 to 84.
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The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditors, in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December
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2015 are analysed below: ZHREEBRASTWOT
Type of services provided by the external auditors ~ MR EEMIRENREES Fees paid/payable
e/ ENER
HK$’000
FAET
Audit services — audit fee for the year ended ZE R — EH E2015F12 A31H
31 December 2015 LEFEENZEER 3,662
Non-audit services — interim review fee IEZ BT — H E=2015946 A30H
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 ERNBEAMTHENER 555
Total: FE 4,217

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the results
and cash flows of the Group for that year and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an
annual basis.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group,
reports to the Board on any material issues and makes recommendations.

The Company and the Group have had an internal audit department. The
internal audit department performed its function fully during 2015
following an annual audit plan and routine testing.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board considered that the
Group’s internal control system is adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the code provision on internal control of the
CG code.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures for
shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”, may follow
the same procedures by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong. The shareholder should state his/her proposals in the written
requisition and submit the written requisition as early as practicable to
enable the Company Secretary to make necessary arrangement.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, pursuant
to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/her of his/
her intention to propose a person for the election and a notice duly
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the lodgment
of the notices should commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior to the
date of the general meeting.

Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send in enquires to the Board to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, Nos. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories , Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or in their absence, other
members of the respective Committees, and, where applicable, the
chairman of the independent Board committee are available to answer
questions at shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company’s business operations and development, financial information
and other information are available to public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year under Review, the Company has not made any changes
to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding. Principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 by principal activities and places of operation is set out
in Note 5 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review for the year ended 31 December 2015,
which includes a discussion on principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, particulars of important events affecting the
Group during the year, and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are also set
out in the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Corporate Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 85.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK7.0
cents per share, amounting to approximately HK$57,862,000 in
aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2015 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on 27 May 2016. The proposed final dividend is subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the AGM. The final dividend, if
approved, is expected to be paid on 15 June 2016.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be held
on 18 May 2016, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 16 May 2016 to 18 May 2016, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered shareholders of the Company
must ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 May 2016.

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 26 May
2016 to 27 May 2016, both dates inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, unregistered shareholders of the Company must
ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 25 May 2016.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past five
financial years is set out on page 172. The summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015
are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Notes 20, 22, 23 and Note 32(a) to the
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 151 to 153, page 168, and pages 88 to 89 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$478,717,000 (2014:
HK$470,886,000), of which HK$57,862,000 has been proposed as a
final dividend for the year.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015 were around HK$2,060,000 (2014: HK$370,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr.
Lee Leung Yiu and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong will retire at the AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 33 to 39 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 33 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive directors entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 20 December
2013, which may be terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of one year commencing
from 20 December 2015, unless terminated by either party giving not less
than one month’s notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report and Note 31 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year under Review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and
the objects of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of the Company or
any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EEREBRD HERGORE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES #H iy &

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the directors of the Company  #2015F 12 831H ' A QXA EE R A D
in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company and associated &) & #H 8 )% B 89 I8 19 &3k 18 B8 A% (D & 1%
corporation which were recorded in the register required to be kept A ERIEZEE R EIEN ([EE R EK
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the il |) 28 352 & &C 8% PY 5% (& FT #6 19 & & it W &Y
“SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  #z - sk ZBIR B2 E <RI < A A &7 K& B

pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows: TETERERID R ¢
() Long position in the shares of the Company () REQXTIRGHOTFE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding in
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests shares the Company*
NN R
EEnR 56 EEtE RO EAE REBFDL
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li”) Interests in controlled corporations 507,920,000 61.45%
(Note 1)

FHREE(FMREE]

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
(“Mr. Yung”)
SEMEE(HEE]D

REGEEERS (M A1)

Interests in controlled corporation 53,760,000 6.50%
(Note 2)
REHEEER (M E2)

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“Mr. Lee”) Interests in controlled corporation 51,840,000 6.27%
(Note 3)

TRBREE(EZRBEE]D ZEEHEE R (K E3)

Notes: Btaz -

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix”) (for 1. ZEBRODADFIAERER LA ([ER])
421,520,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead (15421,620,000/ R IR 17 ) K & B ¥R A
Smart’) (for 86,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of IR 22 8] ([ % 98 ]) (14586,400,000 % & 17)
Eastern Mix is owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and HEH ERMEBFTRASDFBHZETRE
Mr. Lee, respectively; and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by S BEERFTRBEEIFH5%
Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. 28%K27% ;i BN FIHR EAE T EH
Li, he is deemed to be interested in these shares held by these two BEREHZE BARERBRTHEREFMN
corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. RIEERZEHESERE  HIREESFRA

BEBIEXVES - 15417 73 R % W B 2~ &)
HERROPHER R

2. These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (‘Cheer 2. ZERGHEABERGRL A ([EF])

Union”), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung. WHE BB AERTEBERERE

o



These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times”), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2015.

(ii) Long position in the underlying shares of the
Company (physically settled unlisted equity
derivatives) — share options

FIEBEZERBRLAE —O—LFFRH

Directors’ Report (continued)

E=gREEE)

RERDAEFERERA(EF])
FEH ZAAHFRIELLELEHER
## -

B 5 FE AT R i & B AR BB B AR
A AIR20165F 12 A31 H E #7789 R 17
A -
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MEERLETREATET
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of the underlying

Company’s shares over the

underlying Company’s

shares issued share

Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests interested capital*

HEARBEERLQ T

BREZENEAT EBITRAEN

EEpnE B4 e HERAGHE BB

Mr. Li Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.36%
MR F A& E=mBEAA

Mr. Yung Beneficial owner 1,860,000 0.23%
HEE BEREAA

Mr. Lee Beneficial owner 1,800,000 0.22%
FRIBEL Em#EAA

Note: The underlying shares stated above refer to the share options offered by
the Company to the directors on 29 December 2014. These share

options were subsequently accepted by the directors on 5 January 2015.
Details of these share options as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below and Note 21 to the financial statements.

The percentage represents the number of underlying shares involved
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2015.
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(iii) Long position in the shares of associated
corporation of the Company

mnﬁmﬁﬂmﬁﬁaﬁﬁmﬁ
B

Approximate

Number of percentage of

the associated shareholding in

Name of associated Capacity/Nature of corporation’s the associated

Name of director  corporation interests shares interested corporation*

EEENEE RHEBEEZENEQ

EENE HE LB &R B ERME EERBEE RER DL

Mr. Li Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 22,500 45%
IR GAE R BEmHEE A

Mr. Yung Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 14,000 28%
A& £X EmBEAA

Mr. Lee Eastern Mix Beneficial owner 13,500 27%
TRIBRAE 3 BEmBEA A

* The percentage represents the number of shares involved divided by the B2 L IEATH R 89 R (7 20 B B A 46 B

number of issued shares of the associated corporation as at 31 A ER2015F 12 H31 H B #7789 R 17

December 2015, BH -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Br b SCRTH# 88 & Hb - 720154 12 A 31
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AR R EESORE -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the following corporations had interests in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interests

FIEBEZERBRLAE —O—LFFRH
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ERFERRGTKRERERKRSD
E’HE

|.|.|/

MR2015%F 12 A31H * AR AIRIEF FH K& 5
EEPFEIBCIEMTEERARATENEeS
TR Aratsr L TNEBEA AR F5%5
A EMBBEITRAER

RARRARGHER

Approximate
percentage
of shareholding

Number of shares  in the Company*

RADANBA
R A 5 REtE R&OHA RER D>
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 421,520,000 50.99%
SR(HE1) EmlEE A
Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 86,400,000 10.45%
BT 1) ERHA A
Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 58,760,000 6.50%
B (A at2) EmlEE A
Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 51,840,000 6.27%
R (K aE3) ERHA A
Value Partners Group Limited (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 66,824,000 8.08%
EREEERAR(Hita) REHEEER
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund Beneficial owner 59,652,000 7.21%

ExmEAA

Notes:

1.

The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures”.

The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures”.

The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures”.

These 66,824,000 shares were held by Value Partners Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited. Accordingly, Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited and Value Partners Limited were deemed to be interested in
these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2015.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person, other
than the directors of the Company whose interests and short position are
set out in section headed “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants (including employees, executives or
officers, directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to
the long term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract
and retain high caliber employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company’s listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
80,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and 9.68%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant or further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting. A grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Option). In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

Br ESCRTHE EE &S 2015912 4318 ¢
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determined by the directors, save that such a period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options and subject to
the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share Option
Scheme. There is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (i) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.
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Details of the movements of share options under the Share Option R E Z2015F 12831 H I FE - 8RRt
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows: BN BERESEFHFBOT
Number of options
EREHA
Exercised/
Outstanding cancelled/  OQutstanding Exercise
as at Granted lapsed as at price per
Name or category of Date 1 January during during 31 December share Exercise
option holder of grant 2015 the year the year 2015 (HK9) period
20154 FRTE/  R20155F
BREBEA 1818 g8/ 12318 EBRTEE
HHRER RHBH RTE FRAEH P RTE (Bx) T
Executive directors
BTES
Mr. Li Pui Leung 29 December 2014 3,000,000 — — 3,000,000 1.61 Note 1
FHREE 201412 A29H 2l
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael 29 December 2014 1,860,000 — - 1,860,000 1.61 Note 1
SEMEE 2014912 A29H 2l
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu 29 December 2014 1,800,000 — - 1,800,000 1.61 Note 1
FRERE 2014912 A29H 2l
Total
Bz 6,660,000 - - 6,660,000
Notes: fi et -
1. The exercise period of share options granted is from 29 December 2014 to 28 1. ERLBRENITER 52014512 29 A &
December 2017, both dates inclusive. 201712128 A (BEBEEMA) -
2. The number and/or exercise price of share options may be subject to adjustment ~ 2- fif 7{( R A ATt %’YI AT f f_/”jz I3 7*’@535 /Ei
in the case of rights issue, bonus issue, or other changes in the Company’s {:@j; B RIBREHAR KITEELEET
share capital. HE o
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the “Covenantors”)
have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company (on
behalf of itself and the Group) dated 29 November 2013 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure their
respective associates not to directly or indirectly engage in any business
in competition with the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant
information on the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance with the
terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they have fully
complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
independent non-executive directors have reviewed the confirmations
from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed has been complied
with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the
directors confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed annual
caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transacton T H&HH|ZEIEREFER HN2015%E 2
amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2015: FEIEREERL 5%

Actual Transaction

No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Amount
e BHXZ AL FELR ERRZH

RMB'000  HK$'000 ~ RMB'000  HK$'000
ARBTT  TAELT ARBTT  TERX

1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement TK Technology Holdings Limited 97 120 97 120
(“TK Technology Holdings”)
ERBEE MR RIMBEERBRRAF
(RIMRER])
2 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(l) Lease TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd. 591 729 591 729
Agreement (“TK Plastics (Shenzhen)”)

FNEEBEBNVEEHZE FRIZBORINDARA
(TEresrsmrBcRIN ] )

3 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(ll) Lease TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 252 311 252 311
Agreement

FINEEMEBINEEHZE FHERTZERE ORI

4 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(lll) Lease TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 152 187 152 187
Agreement

AINERBMEBIBEERZE FHERTZERECRID

5 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(IV) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 404 498 404 498
Lease Agreement

FINERMEBMVEEHZE HERTZEECRID

6 Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(V) Lease TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 12 15 12 15
Agreement

FINERMEBVEERZ FHERITZECRID

7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant I No. 1 TK Technology (Shenzhen) 5,015 6,183 5,015 6,183
Lease Agreement

AIEZBMENRHEHERZ TR ORI

8 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant I No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) 780 962 780 962
Lease Agreement

RYEZBERREERZE TR ORID

9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Il Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,782 3,430 2,782 3,430
Agreement

RIYNE R BB 1E & a5 RITRZCRIN

10 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant lll Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,432 1,766 1,432 1,766
Agreement
RYIE RS 178 & 1 5 ROTRHE ORI
11 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant IV No. 1 TK Technology (Shenzhen) 738 910 738 910

Lease Agreement

RYEZBEVIRHEERZ TR ORI
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Actual Transaction
No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Amount
w5 BEBXZ B AL FELR BERXSZHE
RMB'000  HK$'000 RMB'000  HK$'000
ARET T FTET ARBTT FAET
12 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant IV No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) 719 887 719 887
Lease Agreement
RYBERBENV2HEERHZE IR CRIID
13 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant V Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,445 1,782 1,445 1,782
Agreement
RYBERBEVEHEERZ FLIRRGRID
14 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VI TK Technology (Shenzhen) 115 142 115 142
Lease Agreement
RN IE K B VITE & 1 ROTL R ORI
15 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VII TK Technology (Shenzhen) 42 52 42 52
No. 1 Lease Agreement
RYBERBEVINEEERZE IR CRIID
16 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VI TK Technology (Shenzhen) 16 20 16 20
No. 2 Lease Agreement
RYBERBEVIZIEHEERZE LR CGRIID
17 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant VIl TK Technology (Shenzhen) 2,694 3,322 2,694 3,322
Lease Agreement
RYBERBEVIFEERHZE IR CRID
18 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant IX TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,224 1,509 1,224 1,509
Lease Agreement
RYERMEIXEE = ROLRHE ORI
19 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant X Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,102 1,359 1,102 1,359
Agreement
RINERBEXEE B # ROTRE ORI
20 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant XI TK Technology (Shenzhen) 546 673 546 673
Lease Agreement
RINE R B E X E = ROTRE ORI
21 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant XII TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,882 2,320 1,882 2,320
Lease Agreement
RINGE R BB XN & 1 ROIRE ORI
22 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Xl TK Technology (Shenzhen) 1,445 1,782 1,445 1,782
Lease Agreement
RIERBEXIEERHZE IR ORYD
23 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant XIV TK Technology (Shenzhen) 389 482 386 474
Lease Agreement
RIERBMEXNVEEHZE IR ORYD
Subtotal of lease agreements 23,874 29,441 23,871 29,433

ME /&t




(1) Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 21 May 2013 (as supplemented by a
supplemental tenancy agreement dated 21 November 2013) (the
“Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and the Company as tenant in
respect of the premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor,
Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong
Premises”) with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a
term of two years and seven months commencing on 1 June 2013
and expiring on 31 December 2015 at a monthly rent of
HK$10,000. The property is used as the principal place of business
for the Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the term of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the Company may terminate the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by paying one
month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and
27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology
Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is
thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual rent of
the Hong Kong Premises in 2015 amounted to HK$120,000,
payable by the Company in advance on the first day of each
calendar month. The annual rent payable to TK Technology
Holdings was determined at after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that the terms
of the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.
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Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements (2 RINEEHmEBHE R
The following lease agreements were entered into between TK FETIBRBORI)(EREX)HEET
Plastics (Shenzhen) as landlord and FTHEALTEE(RYIER A R (TK BaEZ ORI BR AR ([RILEE
Precision Plastics (S2) Limited) (“TK Precision Plastics”) and 45 & TRDERBERBEACRINDBER QA
A(RYNBR AR (YD Mold (S2) Limited) ("YD Mold”) as tenants (MEREE]) (EREAMBAN) D RIFT L
respectively: THIEE W
Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
ik I EE D E AR HEME 8 A#
(RMB)
(AR®)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B() ~ TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 and Mezzanine Level, Zone B on 1 June 2014 to 49,215
Lease Agreement as landlord and 21 November 2014 Level 2 and Zone B on Level 3, 31 December 2015
TK Precision Plastics Block 3, No.2 Dexing Road,
as tenant Yulu Community, Gongming
Sub-district Office, Guangming
New District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
RN E R EB() ARIEBORI) 201456 R1EBR  HERITAAFELAEE  2014F6A1RE
HE W& (fFR%x)&E 2014F11A218 BEEEEHEBERE2R 2015512 A31H
ROLHERILE F3RE2EBRRESEBR
(tEAREMEA) (B#)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(ll)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 and Zone C on Level 1, Block 3, No. 2 1 June 2014 to 20,966
Lease Agreement as landlord and 21 November 2014 Dexing Road, Yulu Community, 31 December 2015
TK Precision Plastics Gongming Sub-district Office,
as tenant Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
AN E#EBEB() FRIBBORI)  2014F6A1AR HERITAHRTRAAEGE 201456 A1HE
HEHE (ER%X)E 2014F11A21E NERFEHEEERE2R 201512 A31 8
RIREREE E3RE1ECE
(tER#EMEAN)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(lll)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 and Zone C on Level 1, Block 2, No. 2 1 June 2014 to 12,672

Lease Agreement

A E 2B E B(I)
HERZ

as landlord and
YD Mold as tenant

HRTER I

(ER%ET)HE
HREA

(fEREEA)

21 November 2014

2014F6 A1 R
201411 B21H

Dexing Road, Yulu Community,
Gongming Sub-district Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
RERYIT R R AREE
NERTEMEBREEEK2S
F2RF1ECE

31 December 2015

2014F6A1HE
201512 A31H
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Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
1t & IEEED EAE: HEME 8 A
(RMB)
(AE#®)
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(IV) TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 Corridor on Level 3 of Block 4, 1 June 2014 to 33,691
Lease Agreement as landlord and Basement and corridor between 31 December 2015
TK Precision Plastics Block 2 and Block 3,
as tenant Units 102, 202 and C301
of Dormitory Block 1, No. 2
Dexing Road, Yulu Community,
Gongming Sub-district Office,
Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
A E#EBEBIV) MERIZBBORY) 201456718 DRI AT E N AT 201456 A1HE
HEBE (ER¥E)E RERFEMEERER 2015612 A31H
RLFEEE AEREER  —REZR
(tEREMEN) FHEERER BE—&
102 + 202 2 C301
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B(V)  TK Plastics (Shenzhen) 1 June 2014 Zone B on Level 1, Block 4, No. 2 1 June 2014 to 981

Lease Agreement

as landlord and
TK Precision Plastics

Dexing Road, Yulu Community,
Gongming Sub-district Office,

31 December 2015

as tenant Guangming New District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
AN EERKEBV) HRIBBORY) 2014566718 RERYIT R BHEAREE 201456 A1HE
HERZE (ER%EEX)E NERFEUEBBERELS 2015612 A31 8
ERIN ) (bagi 4R 1EBRE
(tEREMEAN)

TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to renew the
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements by notifying the landlord
one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B
Lease Agreements and TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are
entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the
event that the landlord intends to sell the subject properties during
the term of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements, including
any renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform TK Precision Plastics
and YD Mold of the intended sale in writing and TK Precision
Plastics and YD Mold are entitled to a right of first refusal to
purchase, which is deemed to be waived if TK Precision Plastics
and YD Mold do not accept the offer within 30 days after receiving
such notice. TK Precision Plastics and YD Mold are further entitled
to terminate the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements by
giving one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr.
Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Plastics
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure TK
Plastics (Shenzhen) to fulffill its obligations under the Shenzhen Yulu
Plant B Lease Agreements.
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2HEE(E)

TK Plastics (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to 45.0% by
Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the
Listing Rules, TK Plastics (Shenzhen) is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr.
Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the
Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Plastics (Shenzhen) was determined
at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that the terms
of the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements (including the
rental payable thereunder) are fair and reasonable and the rental
payable under the Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements
reflects the prevailing market rate.

Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between TK
Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”) and TK Precision Plastics as
tenants respectively:

(3)

MRIZBORIDAETHREE
SHRERTRBEESDHHEERSS
45.0% ~ 28.0% K. 27.0% ° R & £ W iR
Bl TR IBRBORI) BEHR L
ECSEERZTREBEENBEE A
T MARRARWBEEAL-

FEN#T ROTZ B ORI W ER KR
YIEREMEBHERZEN ST AFE
BRETE -ARBWNBLYEGER
NEeER AN EEZMEBHEE HZER
GFR(BEFERTENNES)ERQF
&1 BRIV EEZHMEBHEWHRA
THENEERBRTRITHE -

RYIEREFERE W=
ROIRBORYD (EREE) BET
BA(RINBERAR(RIEECR
1)) RAETHEEDEE (EAEBEA)SH
BIRT S T 51 & 3 -

Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
1 iE HE D] EAE: HEME 8 A#
(RMB)
(AE#®)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 June 2013 and Workshops A, B & C, Phase 1 of 1 June 2013 to 394,885
Plant I No. 1 Lease (Shenzhen) as 21 November 2013 TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and Community, Gongming Sub-
TK Mold (Shenzhen) District Office, Guangming New
as tenant District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RYERBE N5 FOLRH ORI 2013F6A1R KR RERITARBHELREE 2013F6A1HE
HE W (fFR%x)HE 013F11A21E PEREFUHEBRRIRE 2015512 A31H
HOLE A ORI IXE(-#)EFA B CR
(tEAEMEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 June 2013 and Area No. 2, Workshop D, Phase 1 of 1 June 2013 to 61,431
Plant I No. 2 Lease (Shenzhen) as 21 November 2013 TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and Community, Gongming Sub-
TK Mold (Shenzhen) District Office, Guangming New
as tenant District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

FIERBERREEE RIRRCRID
1% (fFREX)HE
RTEACRI)

(EREEA)

2013F6 A1 R
2013F 11 A21H

RERIHEATRRAEE
BEREFHRRTRE
TEE(—H)EEDR2R

2013F6A1HE
2015%F 12 A31H
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Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
1t & IEEED HEME 8 A
(RMB)
(AE#®)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 June 2013 and Workshop G, Phase 1 of TK 1 June 2013 to 219,046
Plant Il Lease (Shenzhen) as 21 November 2013 Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and Community, Gongming Sub-
TK Precision Plastics District Office, Guangming New
as tenant District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RYERBE ROIRE RN 20136 A1ER HERITAAFELAEE  2013F6A1HE
HE W (fEAEE)EFT  2013F11A218 HEREZHERINE 2015612 A31H
BT IXE(-H)BEREGRE
(tEAEMEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 June 2013 and Area No. 9, Workshop H, Phase 1 of 1 June 2013 to 112,772
Plant Il Lease (Shenzhen) 21 November 2013 TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement as landlord and Community, Gongming Sub-
TK Precision Plastics District Office, Guangming New
as tenant District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
ANEXBREIEE ROIRHRCRIN (ER 20136 A1R K HERIITAATRABAEHER 2013F6A1HZE2015
i X¥F)ERTRENE 2013511 A218 ERBFMERFEINETIEE £12A31H
B(ERARAN) (—H)BEHRIFE R
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology Area No. 1, Workshop E, Phase 1 of 1 June 2014 to 61,464
Plant IV No. 1 Lease (Shenzhen) TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement as landlord and Community, Gongming Sub-
TK Mold (Shenzhen) District Office, Guangming New
as tenant District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RIERBE V15 ROIRE RN RERIITRANERREE 201456 A1HZ
HE W (fER%x)&E RERERMRIIRE 2015612 A31 8
LA ORI TXE(—H)BFRER1F
(tEAREMEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 February 2015 and  Area No. 2, Workshop E, Phase 1 of 1 February 2015 to 74,970
Plant IV No. 2 Lease (Shenzhen) TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015

Agreement

RIERBE V2%
MEH#

as landlord and
TK Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenant

ROLEHE ORI
G-+
ROLEA (R
(fEBEAA)

2015F 218 R

Community, Gongming Sub-
District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RERYIT R R AREE
PERERMERRIBE
TR (—#)BEER2%

2015%2A1HZE
201512 A31H
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EEemEE (8)
Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
1t & IEEED EAE: HEME 8 A
(RMB)
(AR®)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 November 2014, Area No. 1, Workshop F, Phase 1 of 1 February 2014 to 120,398
Plant V Lease (Shenzhen) 1 July 2014, TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement as landlord and 15 April 2014 and Community, Gongming Sub-
TK Mold (Shenzhen) 1 February 2014 District Office, Guangming New
as tenant District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RYNERXBEV ROIRE RN 1U4FNAIE . PERITEAMERAREE  2014F2810%
HE W (fFR%x)HE 20145 7R18 MEREFULRITIRIE 2015612 A31H
HOLE A ORI 2014F4 158 %  TER(—H)BEFR1%E
(EREMBAN) 201452710
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 June 2014 Mezzanine Level of Workshop G and 1 June 2014 to 9,610
Plant VI Lease (Shenzhen) Mezzanine Level of Workshop H, 31 December 2015
Agreement as landlord and TK Technology Park, Tangjia
TK Precision Plastics Community, Gongming Sub-
as tenant District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RYIEREEV ROTRHE ORI 201456418 BRI LR E N AT 201456 A1HE
HEhE (fER¥E)ERT MEREFUHRFIRIE 2015612 A31H
Bl TXEGHRRE HRKE
(EREFAN)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 19 October 2015 Area No. 5, Block H, TK Technology 1 October 2015 to 14,069
Plant VIl No. 1 Lease (Shenzhen) as Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and TK Gongming Sub-District Office,
Precision Plastics and Guangming New District,
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Shenzhen City, the PRC
as tenant
R R BR R VISR ROLRHE RN 2015F 10 A19H REIRYIT B ERAREE 20156 10A18E
BEHZ (EREF)ERREIT MEREZHBRIBE 2015F 12 A31H
BENTZ R TIERHESHE

RITERECRIN
(ERABEA)
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Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
thh = IEEED EAE: HEME 8 A
(RMB)
(AE#®)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 October 2015 Area No. 10, Block H, TK 1 October 2015 to 8,160
Plant VIl No. 2 Lease (Shenzhen) as Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and TK Mold Community, Gongming Sub-
(Shenzhen) as tenant District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RINE R B = VIS ROIRH ORI 2015610 A1H RERITRAFRAALGE  2015510A1EZE
HE W (fFR%x)HE MERFEFULRITIRE 2015512 A31H
HOLE A GRY) T¥EHR10%E
(tEAEMEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 26 May 2014 Zone Aon Level 4, Zone Aon Level 7, 1 June 2014 to 224,462
Plant VIIl Lease (Shenzhen) as Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Precision Plastics as Community, Gongming Sub-
tenant District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RYEXBE VI FOLRH RN 201455268 BRI LR E N AT 201456 A1HE
HEhE (fER¥E)ERT MERFEFUHRFIRE 2015612 A31H
Bl TR (CHBRIR
(tEREMEAN) FABAR  BTEAR
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 August 2014 and Zone A on Level 6, Workshop J, 1 August 2014 to 102,028
Plant IX Lease (Shenzhen) as 1 November 2014 Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and TK Tangjia Community, Gongming
Precision Plastics as Sub-District Office, Guangming
tenant New District, Shenzhen City, the
PRC
RYNERBE X ROLRHE RN 2014F8A1E R HRERITRBNERAEE 201458 A1HE
HEBE (fFA¥EX)EFTI  2014F11A1H BEREFXHRRTRE 2015612 A31H
BaNT2 IXR(ZHERIR
(tER#EMEN) E6EAR
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 April 2015 and Zone A on Level 5, Workshop J, 1 April 2015 to 122,434
Plant X Lease (Shenzhen) as 12 August 2015 Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and Tangjia Community, Gongming
TK Precision Plastics Sub-District Office, Guangming
as tenant New District, Shenzhen City, the

RIERBEX
HEHE

BRI GRYD 2015F4 A1 &

PRC
RERIHARERAEE

2015F4A1BE

(fEAEX)EET 201587120 BERERMCEF IR 2015512 4318
BELE S IR CHBEIR
(fEBEAA) F5EBAR
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EEemEE (8)
Parties to the
Agreement Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
1t & IEEED EAE: HEME 8 A
(RMB)
(AR®)
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 April 2015 and Zone B on Level 1, Workshop J, 1 April 2015 to 60,664
Plant XI Lease (Shenzhen) 12 August 2015 Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2015
Agreement as landlord and Tangjia Community, Gongming
TK Precision Plastics Sub-District Office, Guangming
as tenant New District, Shenzhen City, the
PRC
RIERBEX ROIRE RN 20164 A1ER  HERITAAFELAEE  2016F4[10F
HEHE (EAZF)HEET 201548A12R RERERMRRIRE 2015612 A31 8
BT IR CEHBREIRF
(fEREMAAN) £1EBR
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 April 2015 and Zone BonLevels2,4,8,9and 10, 1 April 2015 to 235,910
Plant XIl Lease (Shenzhen) as 12 August 2015 Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Precision Plastics as Community, Gongming Sub-
tenant District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
RYEZXBEXI ROIRE RN 20154 A1E R HERITAAFELAEE  2015F4[10F
HE W (EREE)EHRT 201548A12H MERFEF LRI 2015%12 4318
BRbTE IR (CHBRIREE -
(EREMBAN) 4/ -8E -9 - 10EBE
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 April 2015 and Zone B on Levels 3, 5 and 6, 1 April 2015 to 160,515
Plant Xl Lease (Shenzhen) as 12 August 2015 Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and Technology Park, Tangjia
TK Precision Plastics Community, Gongming Sub-
as tenant District Office, Guangming New
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
AR B E X ROTRHE ORI 20155418k HERIITAANERREE 2015F4/1HE
HEhE (fER¥E)EHRI  201548A12H MEREFUHRFIRIE 2015612 A31 8
Bl TR (CHBREIR
(tEREMEAN) %3 58 6[EBE
Shenzhen Tangjia TK Technology 1 January 2015 Dormitory Block A of TK Technology 1 January 2015 to 32,320
Plant XIV Lease (Shenzhen) as Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2015
Agreement landlord and Gongming Sub-District Office,
TK Precision Plastics Guangming New District,
as tenant Shenzhen City, the PRC
RIFERBEXV FOTRE (GRIN 201551 A1 H RERITRBAFRAREE  201551A18%
HEHZE (EREF)ERT MEREZHRIIRE 2015612 A31H8
BENT2 TX¥EARES

(fEREEA)




TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are entitled to renew
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by notifying the
landlord one month before the expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements, and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK
Precision Plastics are entitled to a right of first refusal in the renewal.
Moreover, in the event that the landlord intends to sell the subject
properties during the term of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements, including any renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform
TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics of the intended sale
in writing and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are
entitled to a right of first refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be
waived if TK Mold (Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics do not
accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such notice. TK Mold
(Shenzhen) and TK Precision Plastics are further entitled to
terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by giving
one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung
and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Technology
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure TK
Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the Shenzhen
Tangijia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is an
associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected
person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements. The independent
property valuer of the Company has also confirmed that, having
taken into account of, among other things, the title defects of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder) are fair
and reasonable and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate. Our
directors consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements have been entered into on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group.

FIEBEZERBRLAE —O—LFFRH
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emEE(8)
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2HEE(E)

Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing Rules,
the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement,
Shenzhen Yulu Plant B Lease Agreements and Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements (collectively the “Connected Lease
Agreements”) have been aggregated for the purposes of
determining the category of continuing connected transaction that
the Connected Lease Agreements shall fall into under the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have, for
the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its
business; (i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the agreements governing such transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2015, it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BE E ™R A FE14A81 - 14A82 K%
14A8316  HEEHERHH R E&
BEBHEHMZELFYERRERE
R(EBEERAERZDEBETHAR
ShEAHTE WETHERE WS
BIELTMREFMBNIFERERZ A
Bl o

Bt MR BIE14AL51E M S - AR A
BYUFERITEEE R LlFERE
RGUER ZERHEBEZXS A
AEBORERER —REBBES
FTAL ¢ ()R IE % 5 SRR 2k B E 2 5
o RNBIBEREZERIZ2MEL
ARIFEBGRET UHFEERRER
HEEEEF o

B FHEBIE14A561E 0 AR A
BAEZERE(GESZERRBER
3000)[ [FE 2 57 7% & K 28 5T 5k 28 B LA Hh
MIZBEIEIRZBEESSTMAE
BHHCEBHBYETA0R R BB
EWMRBI B ERER SN ZEE
K IEFRAEB ZFEBERS -
RHMERAEER EXHBEZFHE
HMEXSHEHERBELNKS - K
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Z’Ko
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B X S FBENI EHRERMFES -
KARHER B E2015F12A31BILEE
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 34.0% of the Group’s total sales and
the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was approximately
9.2% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 27.1% of the
Group’s total purchases and the purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 6.7% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial interests in the
Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to above.

RECTIFICATION OF NON-COMPLIANCE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROCEDURES
FOR THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF
OCCUPATIONAL DISEASES AND HAZARDS

At the time of listing, the Company had non-compliance in relation to
procedures for the prevention and control of occupational diseases and
hazards. Up to the date of this annual report, the Company had rectified
the non-compliance in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares entered
into by the Company during the Year under Review or subsisted at the
end of the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and a controling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

RISEER)ERAE ZO—-—LFFRH
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are
advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_a

pwc

To the shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TK Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages
85 to 171, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

VR T

BEIEEM(EZERERATDICERR
RESHESTMHALZBRAAF)

KB BAHNESERITIERIER
(FER)ERARTERTD) REMHB AR
&G SRR - BIER20159 12 4318
MEHEEABRRMEBZZBALEFENS
HrEKEXR 6HEZE2HRREHE
PHRER FTESHBRBEAREME
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EERA OB RRARS

BERAEFAEERBEESMAENR
e E BN B RS EREERBERGH
BREREREEEMTENAHMBR
KO UWHERBREGHBBRENER
Tﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
BR st P 424 75 B 19 B 22 7 °

BB N EE

ANETRREBERMNEFFEZFAH
MERRIFLER LEREERRBRSE
BAMER BRUZIIABEREELME
Mo RFFAERARENARBEMAEM
AL B ESEEEAAEE

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EfzEKRER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B i FET FAT
Revenue A 5 1,606,205 1,338,920
Cost of sales 55 AR (1,187,331) (973,504)
Gross profit E ] 418,874 365,416
Other income H Ao g A 6 22,237 18,640
Other (losses)/gains — net Hth (E518), Wz — F 58 6 (1,512) 4,075
Selling expenses HEMX 7 (82,676) (62,675)
Administrative expenses TR 7 (147,130) (134,074)
Operating profit 4 R 209,793 191,382
Interest income B WA 9 9,721 4,192
Interest expenses BN 9 (4,901) (5,122)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEWA(A)— F58 4,820 (930)
Profit before income tax B Fir 48 B4 A % 214,613 190,452
Income tax expense FIEBiA X 10 (27,525) (36,529)
Profit for the year attributable AATEE AENL
to owners of the Company FRERN 187,088 153,923
Other comprehensive income Hiuz2mEkEzE
Item that may be reclassified to KA[REEFT AR
profit and loss: BmZEE -
Currency translation differences MEHZE5 (42,184) (1,806)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWZHAE
for the year 144,904 152,117
Earnings per share for the year FRERER
— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) —EARNEE(FRET) 11 0.19

The notes on pages 91 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FNETTEANMNER/ZFAHTBHHRRN
MARER D
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

Note
B it

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- B REE 13
Intangible assets mEE 14
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTLE B 26
Prepayments for property, Y BERRENENK

plant and equipment
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEENES 24
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 16
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e R IE 17
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEEMNES 24
Restricted cash ZRAIES 19
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED 19
Total assets BEE
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners EAREBAELES

of the Company
Share capital fig A 20
Share premium f& 1 % (B 20
Other reserves E A 23
Retained earnings R & A 22
Total equity EREE

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET

344,151 306,495
10,785 9,720
6

18,391

2,006

375,906 336,618
254,402 239,119
244,546 295,171
104,238 —
1,176 —
319,951 266,526
924,313 800,816
1,300,219 1,137,434
82,660 82,660
237,902 237,902
15,890 46,100
269,049 160,063
605,501 526,725
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

Note
k:3
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings WITEE 24
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHAE 26
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M fE A B 25
Income tax liabilities FEHasE
Bank borrowings RITEE 24
Total liabilities we &
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBEESE

The notes on pages 91 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2016 and were signed

on its behalf.

Li Pui Leung
=R
Director

BF

aHEERERE)

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2015
HK$°000
FET

471,980
10,633
137,288

619,901

694,718

1,300,219

Yung Kin Cheung Michael
SEH

Director

5%

2014
HK$’000
TAT

46,632

4,398

51,030

443,993
30,957
84,729

559,679

610,709

1,137,434

FNEITTAENMERZFEHUBERERL
ARCER Y

P2016F3A15HEEF A& WHER
REE o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EREH X

Other reserves

Httfwfe

Share  Currency
Share Share Statutory  option translation Retained
capital premium reserves  reserve reserve earnings Total
BHRE
BRE RAEE EERE #E ELRE RLER @t
Note  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 — HK$000 HKE000 HK$000
Mg FThErn  TAT TRz TEx TErL ThAT Tz

Balance at 1 January 2014 Ro014E1B1BR &% 80,000 208,143 7,918 — 22,195 51,410 370,266
Comprehensive income 2HEE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - — 153,923 153,923
Currency translation differences BEREE 23 - - - - (1,806) - (1,806)
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - - (1,806) 153,923 152,117

Contributions by and distributions XA TH#EALER

to owners of the Company Pk 2Rk
Share issuance kT 20 2,660 30,590 - - - - 33250
Share issuance costs R A7 B 1T B 20 - (831) - - - - (831)
Share option scheme: BREE

— Value of employee services -BIRKEE - - - 3,334 - - 3,334
Dividends 135! 27 - - - - — @1411) (@141

Total contributions by and FRADREEALE

distributions to owners of REGIBRAR
the Company for the year 2,660 29,759 - 3,334 - (31,419) 4,342
Transfer to statutory reserves BREZTRE 23 - — 13859 - - (13859) -

Total transactions with owners of BEAA T HE AW
the Company REBE 2660 29759 13,859 3,334 —  (45270) 4342

Balance at 31 December 2014 R2014E12A31H8
:0F 82,660 237,902 21,777 3,334 20,989 160,063 526,725
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

= N\ /4=

PANY Ry 454 =]
SN ER TR (E)
Other reserves
Hitii
Share  Currency
Share Share Statutory  option translation Retained
capital premium reserves  reserve reserve earnings Total
BRE
BRA BROEE EEHE wE ELifE REEAN @t
Note  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz TAT FEx FTET TExn TET TAL THEx
Balance at 1 January 2015 20151 A1 B A £ 82,660 237,902 21,777 3334 20,989 160,063 526,725
Comprehensive income 2HEE
Profit for the year ERRF - - - - — 187,088 187,088
Currency translation differences EHER 23 - - - - (42,184) - (42,184)
Total comprehensive income 2EKNEAE - - - - (42,184) 187,088 144,904
Contributions by and distributions ZAFTHEEAHLER
to owners of the Company Pk 2Rk
Dividends Be 27 - - - - - (66,128) (66,128
Total contributions by and FREADAEFALE
distributions to owners of REGAEARE
the Company for the year - - - - —  (66,128) (66,128)
Transfer to statutory reserves BREZTRE 23 - - 11974 - - (11,974 -
Total transactions with owners of EAXAFEEAMN
the Company REBE - - 11974 - - (78,102)  (66,128)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015F12 831 B
g 82,660 237,902 33,751 3,334 (21,195) 269,049 605,501

The notes on pages 91 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

FNEITTENMERZEEHFHBHRERN
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHBEERER

Note
K &t
Cash flows from operating activities RERKETHNRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEENES 28(a)
Interest received 2 HF E
Income tax paid BER
Net cash generated from operating WETEBTEAR
activities IR & 55
Cash flows from investing activities REREZBNRERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy B — FE B B A &)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEMEE
equipment and construction in ARFERTIRE
progress
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BELKHED
plant and equipment Fr 5 58 28(b)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial B EZE A HEN S L E
assets 18
Proceeds from available-for-sale financial A] 4 H & th) % gt & &=
assets Ffr 15 518 18
Net cash used in investing activities KEESHRER S F5E
Cash flows from financing activities REMEIBNESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings BT BB RE
Repayments of bank borrowings EELITEE
Increase in deposits for bank borrowings #2717 & & 1% & 4 N
Interest paid EATFE
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT TS 5UR
Share issuance costs paid B 5 R 17 3 17 Bk A
Repayments to related companies Bl NGRS
Dividends paid 2T E 27
Net cash used in financing activities BRI AR S FRE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeRBEESEEY
cash equivalents i CRd) FEE
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning £ ## 2 RBEESEEY
of the year
Currency translation losses on cashand IR& NE S EEY
cash equivalents b 55 518
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofthe FXKIBELRIELEEW
year
Analysis of balances of cash and cash HWELRBESEEY
equivalents: HEERD T
Cash and cash on hand RekFHEAS
Bank overdrafts BITE L
Restricted cash ZMRHIE e

The notes on pages 91 to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31BLEE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
319,398 187,705
6,058 3,187
(44,166) (32,658)
281,290 158,234
(1,649)

(122,590) (183,177)
(4,291) (7,781)
1,079 3,440
(307,671) (292,762)
311,683 292,762
(121,790) (189,167)
308,088 137,007
(233,417) (161,657)
(102,232) (739)
(4,933) (4,994)

- 33,250

- (831)

- (1,192)
(66,128) (31,411)
(98,622) (30,567)
60,878 (61,500)
265,612 327,765
(6,539) (653)
319,951 265,612
321,127 266,526
- 914)
(1,176) —
319,951 265,612

FNENTTENMERZFAHIBHRRN
ARER S -



FIEBEZERBRLAE —O—LFFRH

Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company, an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing, sales, subcontracting, fabrication and modification
of molds and plastic components in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). As at 31 December 2015, the ultimate shareholders of
the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael and
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate Shareholders”), each
holding an effective equity interest of 33.40%, 20.78% and 20.04%
in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (‘HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 15 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81 %5 R By e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group
The following standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendment distinguishes between
contributions that are linked to service only in the
period in which they arise and those linked to
service in more than one period. The amendment
allows contributions that are linked to service, and
do not vary with the length of employee service,
to be deducted from the cost of benefits earned
in the period that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service, and vary
according to the length of employee service, must
be spread over the service period using the same
attribution method that is applied to the benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 Rk B o (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by
the Group (Continued)

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs — 2010-2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8,
“Operating segments”, HKAS 16, “Property, plant
and equipment” and HKAS 38, “Intangible assets”
and HKAS 24, “Related party disclosures”.

Amendments from annual improvements to
HKFRSs — 2011-2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3,
“Business combinations”, HKFRS 13, “Fair value
measurement” and HKAS 40, “Investment
property”.

The adoption of the improvements made in the
2010-2012 Cycle has required additional
disclosures in the segment note. Other than that,
the remaining amendments are not material to the
Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation during
the financial year, as a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial
statements.

2 FESHHREME @
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81 %5 R By e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2 FESTHHREME @

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C' ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

2.1 REEE (@)

(c) New and amended standards have been (c)
issued but are not effective and have not

been early adopted:

2AIEHBERRKESR
(&)

Al R A& £ 5T £ Rl
B A E e R L
B IR RIRA

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
REFHERARR
ZEX

HKFRS 14
BRI HREERIFE 1457
Amendment to HKFRS 11

BBV BRELBNE115R
CHEN,

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

BRI EAFE16HRES
FEFERIE 385 (5T A)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

BT BRELERNE105%
BAVBRELEE 125
kB A SRR FE285%
CEHIEN,

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BBV BREERFE 105 &
BRI EAE 285
CEHEN,

Amendments to HKAS 27

BB G HEAE27HR
({&ET7)

Regulatory deferral accounts

EEIRLERP

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operation

WEaERERRZGE

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation
FEMBHNAIEI T ENEE

Investment entities

REER

Sale or contribution of assets between an

investor and its associate or joint venture

REERHEBERNRAXAELERZ
EELEIEE

1 January 2016
20161 H1H

1 January 2016
20161 H1H
1 January 2016
2016F1A1H

1 January 2016

20161 H1H

Not yet determined

EEN:

Equity method in separate financial statements 1 January 2016

BB WMERESGA

20161 H1R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 Rk B o (A8

2 FESHHREME @

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C' ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

()

New and amended standards have been

21 EEE (@)

issued but are not effective and have not

been early adopted:

2ANEHBERKED
(&)
(c) #F AT A% 5 5T £ A
B E 14
A IR

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
REsTHEMABE
ZEN

Annual improvements 2014

2014 F [E U
— Amendment to HKFRS 5

— BBV BREEL
E55% (fBET )

— Amendment to HKFRS 7

— BBV BREEL
BT UEFTA)

— Amendment to HKAS 19

— BBgERAE199E
({&ET7)

— Amendment to HKAS 34

— BB g ERE 34

(ERTA)
HKAS 1
BAEGEAE1R
HKAS 15

BAE G ERE 155
HKFRS 9
BAEVBRELAEINR

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

BEHERNERBEERD KL
KT

Financial instruments: Disclosures

EWMIAE: RE

Employee benefits

EE®BA

Interim financial reporting

RS R

Disclosure initiative

&l

Revenue from contracts with customer
BEPEHKA

Financial instruments

ok =t

The Group did not early adopt any of these new
or revised standards, amendments and
interpretation to existing standards. Management
is currently assessing the financial impact of these
revisions to the Group’s financial position and

performance.

1 January 2016
201641 A1H

1 January 2016
20161 H1H
1 January 2018
20181 H1H
1 January 2018
20181 H1H

AEBEL REFRA
EAZEFRTHEE
RIERA - RAEEAM
EBikaE - BEE
BRIEAEFEZEE
A8 AN R A IROR
MEBRNYHEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFBERBEw
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 B AT
2.2.1Consolidation 2216 0tERE
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) NG =N =
over which the Group has control. The Group controls HENEZE(BREREESE
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights ). g RKE 2 HEE
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity MEEMESSKBREZS
and has the ability to affect those returns through its AEEERNEERE NEE
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated ZELOHOES  BIRER
from the date on which control is transferred to the HZEBEITSE - TER
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that Al HEERE E NE
control ceases. ERTBHEHAKR -WBQ
RIEEHI KIS B RE
IEEBFARR-

(a) Business combinations (@) EBEv
The Group applies the acquisition method to AREBEFEBWE LG
account for business combinations. The EBEAHAR I
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a —ZXHEB AR FTEE
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets BRE BWEH
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former BIEE AFTEZESER
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests E-EXBEBELANE
issued by the Group. The consideration BITHRAEZB A
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or NE-FTEEHNRE
liability resulting from a contingent consideration BIESRARE LB
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and EENETMRNEEXE
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a EHAARBE - XK
business combination are measured initially at & G B UL BE TT 2 B
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group B & E A& BT A E
recognises any non-controlling interest in the MBENMKABE
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, AR E B &
either at fair value or at the non-controlling MARBEFE A&
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised B 3% 3% 78 Y B B YE LA
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. NS 1B B FE 1 b A
BRI 5 B

RA B AIFEEML
7l RN EKE S
B (o] FEFR Il 1A 2

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as WEE R NEE L
incurred. r 2 34 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(Note 2.6(c)).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

2 FESHHREME @

2.2 B2 T @
2216 6tER (&)

@)

EHE O (B

RKERH NEE
# T 8 e E A K
RAREDERIAERE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 TESTHHEBE =

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 B2 T @
2.2.1Consolidation (Continued) 2215 BtERE (@)
(b) Merger accounting (b) B D5

In preparing for the Company’s listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in December 2013,
the Group underwent a reorganisation involving
entities under the same ownership of the ultimate
shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
or businesses as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing
carrying amounts from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill
or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under
the common control, whichever is shorter,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHHREME @

2.2 B2 T @
2216 BtER B (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Merger accounting (Continued)
The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at the
previous balance sheet date or when they first
came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated on consolidation.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors who makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). Renminbi (“RMB”)
is the functional currency of principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
the presentation and functional currency of the
Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “other (losses)/gains
— net”.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
recognised in profit or loss within “finance income or
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss within “other (losses)/gains
— net”.

2.3

2.4
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transaction); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised as a separate component of equity in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not provided
on construction in progress until the related asset is
completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHBEMEw

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C' ES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 ¥ BERSEE@
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated ME - -BELEZEBITERE G
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their AFERFHUNEGSESEREAY
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: EEREREENT :

Buildings 20 years

g 206

Leasehold improvements Over 5 years or the remaining term of the relevant lease,
whichever is shorter

HEWMEERE BASFRRABBENHGBFR(MERRES)

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

TR B5 R 1 25 5Z10%F

Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment 3 years

RE -HBEREKEME 3%F

Motor vehicles 5 years

AE 54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and BEENFGEELTERAFHR

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. EWmEHABRETER  WHE

ERELFHE-

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its BEERAESNEMETTRE

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater S 58 HARTE E BB = AT UL

than its estimated recoverable amount. Elia-=1

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing HEREEBLERMAERIBHER

the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised HEET ITREHE2ERER

within “other (losses)/gains — net” in the consolidated mIEM (B8R, s — F8A

statement of comprehensive income. R o

2.6 Intangible assets 26 BLEE

(@) Computer software (@) ETE#E=MH
Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis BARGHRIEREAR
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the BHEERMGERERME
specific software. These costs are amortised on a FHKRKAEEMBERE
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 Koo ZERRTIIREFER
to 10 years. HtstaEREFHEGFER

104F) B3 -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method at three years over the
expected life of the customer relationship.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTBERBZE@

2.7 BB X

2.7 Research and development expenditure

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
met:

° it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

° there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

° adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

° the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense is
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.9.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, these are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables comprise deposits for
bank borrowings, trade and other receivables,
restricted cash and cash and bank balances.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHHREME @

29 EREE @

2.917 % (1&)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.1Classification (Continued)

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

2.9.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of interest income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.100ffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.11Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or Group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHHREME @

21MEMEERE @

2.11Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.12Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. It excluded borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

2.14Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

2.15S8hare capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHHREME @

2.16Trade payables 2168 5 ERE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.18Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.19Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@  Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Qutside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.20Employee benefits

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESHHREME @

2.21Share-based payments 221 R ARER Z TR

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (and share
premium).

2.22Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@ Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.22Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Modification services income
Revenue from mold modification services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

(¢) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.23Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the income statement on a
straight- line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

2.25Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT|NG POL|C|ES (Continued)

2.26Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group and approved by the Board of
Directors.

(@ Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks, mainly with respect to HK$,
US dollar (“USD”), Euro dollar (“EUR”) and Japan dollar
(“JPY”). Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends
have always been the concern of the Group. Foreign
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
our chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group’s
chief executive officer. In accordance with our hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation, the
Group’s chief financial officer would gather and analyse
information regarding various hedging instruments and
determine stop-loss thresholds. The Group’s chief
financial officer would then obtain quotations from
various banks as to the financial instrument and present
such quotations to the Group’s chief executive officer,
who would then evaluate and make a decision as to
whether to enter into the relevant hedging agreement.
No hedging contract has been entered into during the
year. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continues) 3 Bt 7 B i B 12 ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M¥EAREZE®
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@ HME R B (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RNEEEBERBE K%

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities NN EEBEE R

at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows: BEEAEZEEESEY W

T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAET
Assets EE

HK$ A IT 12,615 121,168

usD ET 202,835 214,283

EUR B 43,466 12,444

Total #Et 258,916 347,895
Liabilities afE

HK$ BT 120,864 124,565

Usb ETT 31,431 16,846

EUR B 100,207 406

JPY = 915 -

Total 1t 253,417 141,817
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

B %5 Rk B o (A8

3 BHEREE @

31 Bi¥ERREZE @
(@ JMEERK (@)

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable held
constant, the profit before income tax would have been
higher/(lower) as follows:

2015

i AR X H I
B/ B 1E5%  mAAEHM
BERETE - BIRATEH
Al g A8 0, O 4) 15 5 1A
T

2014

(Lower)/higher on profit
before income tax
if exchanges rates change by

HEESBMT  BRAEH

BISER (Rl 4),/ 1 i

+5% -5%

HK$000 HK$’000

FTER FHER
HK$ BT 5,412
ush E (8,570)
EUR BT 2,837
JYP H 46

Price risk (b)

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
or commodity price risk and the Group has not entered
into any long term contracts with the suppliers.
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually
passed on to customers.

(Lower)/higher on profit
before income tax
if exchanges rates change by
fHEZZEHMT  BRAEH
AT R CRt 4),/48

+5% -5%
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
170 (170)
(9,872) 9,872
(602) 602
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for bank
borrowings, the Group manages the credit risk by
placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and other
receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition and does
not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. Based on the expected
recoverability and timing for collection of the
outstanding balances, the Group maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts and actual losses
incurred have been within management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group faced some
concentration of credit risk as the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 53% (2014:
48%) of the total trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management
by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated through the
availability of financing through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its
financial commitments. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows including
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or
if floating based on rates at the year-end date.

On demand

BREXR
HK$'000
TRR

At 31 December 2015
Bank borrowings

20155612 A31 R
RITIEE

3 BHEREE @
Bt %% &L B BB & (%)

3.1

3 months
or less
=@A
FUT

HK$°000
THERT

107,590

(d)

REE £ E B2 ()

TROREBEERMBXRA
=5 R H A F R
[ - 1R AR A B HR A Bl o0 AT AR
SEHEBAGE - RABEED
TERERABERESR
B BREMBAOLLEFE
BFSE D RIHEFE

AR FERNLRAE -

3 months Over

to 1 year 1 year Total
=f@A
E-f —-FHE At

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TER THERT THER

32,676

PARNK])]

Trade and other payables 8 5 & H fh fE
(excluding non-financial HEGEeRARE
liabilities) B 4h) 237,614 251,290
Total it 345,204 32,676 465,020
3 months 3 months
On demand or less to1year QOver1year Total
=@A =@ A
BEX FUAT - —FHE @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET TAET TAET FTET
At 31 December 2014 RW2014F12A31H
Bank borrowings RITEE - 39,927 47,561 50,991 138,479
Trade and other payables B 5 & H fh FE
(excluding non-financial HBEGEeRARE
liabilities) % 4h) 26,336 176,984 - — 203,320
Total Mt 26,336 216,911 47,561 50,991 341,799
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank
borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements but will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise. If
interest rate for variable rate borrowings had been 1%
higher/lower for the year ended 31 December 2015
with all other variables held at constant, the Group’s
profit before tax would have been lower/higher by
HK$2,053,000 (2014: HK$1,314,000).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of cash and cash equivalents.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may vary the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity.

3
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hn2,053,0007% 7T (2014 4F :
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

B %5 Rk B o (A8

3 BHEREE @

Capital management (Continued) 3.2 EXEE @)
The gearing ratio is as follows: BEAGBLRENOT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FE&T
Total borrowings BB 205,339 131,361
Total equity R 605,501 526,725
Gearing ratio (%) BB ELE %) 34% 25%
Gearing ratio has increased to 34% as at 31 December 2015, MR2015F 12 A31H - EXRBEL
which is mainly due to the increase in bank borrowings during REWE3M% EEHRNFAR
the year. TEEE AT -
Fair value estimation 3.3 AREME

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank
borrowings and trade and other receivables, as well as
current financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and current bank borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities as at 31 December
2015.

There were no financial assets or liabilities measured at fair
value by the use of valuation techniques at 31 December
2015 (2014: nil).

MR B EE &S - H2015F 12 A
- nEBeMmEE(RFR:
kB EEY IRHFEL - R
TEENEEUARES R EME
B AERBcHmAEE(RE
B REMENRERNERT
BE)HNAABEHEEEEER

4t

Eo

MR2015F 12 A31 B » BB 1(F
BHEERTEREALABTEZS R
BENEBERM4EI2A313
) -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@ Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and
consequently the related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it wil write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables with
reference to the extent and duration that the amount
will be recovered. Allowance is applied where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate customers’ orders, ageing analysis of
inventories and compare the carrying amount of
inventories to their respective net realisable value. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
determining such allowances. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(d)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be recognised.
The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

4

B9 8 = 5 b 5T 2 H )

41 BREFTHTRBR @

(d)

FRGH RIEER T8

EETMEHMEEREA
FHEXRHE - £ R EEB
BT ZEXSHRFAEN
AN EEYREEERK
PREME - HELEHERK
P& B E & A1 8% 15 M 3R
BHEMEZE AHREZELSS
FEEEHEYEODHS
MBERMSREERBIE -

HWEREERBEAESH
RERERBABEAEEE
FrEBHIARE AR
BERETERZHEENEA
BIEMNELEHAEEE - B
BRERKSEMTR -



RISEER)ERAE ZO—-—LFFRH 127

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 Rk B o (A8

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 BRI RAE @
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 FERET BRI EEH &

4.2 Critical judgements in applying accounting

policies

With effect from 1 January 2008, companies within the PRC
are required to withhold income tax at 10% of the amount of
dividend declared to their immediate holding companies
outside the PRC out of profits earned after 1 January 2008. A
lower 5% withholding income tax rate is applied when the
immediate holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are
established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain requirements
under the tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year, the directors reassessed the
cash requirement of the Group and the dividend policy of its
major subsidiaries established in the PRC, namely TK Mold
(Shenzhen) Limited, YD Mold (Shenzhen) limited, TK Precision
Plastic (S2) Limited and TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited,
based on the Group’s current business plan and financial
position. The profit generated by these subsidiaries for the
period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2015 amounting to
HK$100,524,000 would not be distributed and no deferred
tax liability was accrued accordingly. The Group plans to
reinvest these profits in the business operation. This involves
critical judgements by the directors.

BB ZESHIE - 8200841
A1HE B9 RBEINEELER
A B Hy F E B B A B 722008 4F 1
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Group. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources and have determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports that are used to make strategic
decisions. During the year, the Group has 18 operating segments,
out of which 11 operating segments relating to the mold business
are aggregated into (“mold fabrication”) operating segment as they
have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions and
meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8; the remaining 7
operating segments relating to the plastic business are aggregated
into (“plastic components manufacturing”) operating segment as
they have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions
and meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8. Accordingly, the
executive directors considered the nature of the Group’s business
and determined that the Group has two reportable segments as
follows: (i) mold fabrication and (i) plastic components
manufacturing.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on their revenue and gross profit and do not
assess the assets and liabilities of the operating segments.

7 &b &
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
(@) The following table presents information on revenue of the

Group by geographical segments for the year.

Revenue from external customers

4

7 E R @

EHEZERERND BER

(

a)

TRENAKERFRRILE D

HE DU E R -

IRBEFPBA

2015
HK$’000
TR

PRC =8
South East Asia and Hong Kong R ME S
Europe &M
USA ES
Japan =]
Others EAh

700,952
342,192
318,912
170,735

13,989
59,425

1,606,205

The revenue information above is based on delivery location
of the customers.

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets, by country:

2014
HK$’000
TAT

597,529
224,883
250,190
215,232
23,676
27,410

1,338,920

ERRAEHTIEREP RN

Ho & o

FRBEE(EHITAREEMN
BHEERI)  REXK:

2015
HK$’000
TER

PRC rh
Germany =

368,790
7,116

375,906

2014
HK$’000
TAT

332,151
2,455

334,606
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)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5
Segment information for consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (Continued)
The segment information for the reportable segments is set
out as below:
Mold fabrication
BERE
2015 2014
HK$000  HK$'000
TERT FET
Revenue A
Segment revenue D EIA GRS 598,989

Inter-segment revenue elimination

il
PRI ON:T:: (47,010)

Revenue from external customers

Segment results
Other income and
other (losses)/gains — net

Selling expenses

Administration expenses
Financial income/(costs) — net

Profit before income tax

IREEWRA 588,800
DEEE 149,789

(BR) M

- FH
HERX
THRAX
mEWA/ ()

- FH

BR Pt 158t A A A

(58,730)

540,259

185,392

A\ 327 > MIAY _
7 HE R @
EHEZEHUERNHBER
(&)
b)) FwEDIBH S BE KW
™
Plastic components
manufacturing Total
EEAHRE st
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TAR
MOV BN 798,661 WIGERFAEN 1,397,650
- — CYA[ON  (58,730)
MOV BN 798,661 WIGIEFIEN 1,338,920
PLENEEN 180,024 BREERTEN 365,416
20,725 22,715
(BPAYN  (62,675)
WEYARIN  (134,074)
4,820 (930)
ALGIRE 190,452
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o3E R @

Segment information for consolidated statement EHZ2EUBEENBER

of comprehensive income (Continued) (&)
()  Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature: © BEAEEZRMEAEIHKRAE

o

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THR
Sales of goods HE® M 1,549,746 1,292,025
Modification service income SHERB W = 56,459 46,895

1,606,205 1,338,920

(d) Revenues of approximately HK$147,232,000 (2014: @) U A%I147,232,00078 T (2014 4F -
HK$134,066,000) were derived from a single external 134,066,000/% 7T ) J 2K B B — 4h
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic ABEP -ZEWARB TBHAMF

components manufacturing segment.

BEDHER

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 6 HE bl AR Ht(&518),~

GAINS — NET W = — 3%%‘&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Other income Hg A
Sales of scrap and surplus materials & R K R & v R 13,027
Government subsidies 5 #6 Bh -
Others EHA 5,613
18,640
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518) k= — F8
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain PE 5 (&518) ks F5 (1,218) 3,813
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  WERZHEN
plant and equipment (Note 28(b)) (E18), W=k (Bt aF28(b) (294) 262

(1,512) 4,075
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7 BEMEEIHNAX

Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Subcontracting expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Water and electricity expenditures
Transportation and travelling expenses
Operating lease payments
Other taxes and levies
Maintenance expenses
Allowance for impairment of inventories
(Reversal of)/allowance for receivables
Commission expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non audit services
Advisory and legal service expenses
Advertising and promotion fees
Utilities and postage fees
Security and estate management expenses
Donations
Bank charges and handling fees
Other expenses

2015
HK$’000
FTH T

B M RN R TFEEE)
(21,721)
R B R FEM 571,677
EERABAXZ (Hx8) 433,762
RIEA 172,452
WeE REH 64,360
KEEHR 41,069
Ea R ERMAZ 45,754
LR EMNR 36,206
HmiE 10,704
w8 A 10,783
FERERB 1,880
JREUs SR IE (B [E]), B (1,770)
He &R 20,759

1% 8RB % B

— ZER 3,835
— ERHR 555
BHRREERBRAX 5,614
EEREEEBA 4,075
HMERIE 4,462
RERWMEERESR 1,308
1B 2,060
RITHEBRFES 1,239
HEF X 8,074

Total cost of sales, selling expenses and
administrative expenses

HERAK - HERXR
THRXEEH 1,417,137

2014
HK$'000
TAT

(58,679)
510,024
379,173
140,629

51,939
36,073
32,478
25,777
7,875
7,461
8,172
1,731
4,647

3,427
2,880
3,697
4,508
2,627

370

847
4,697

1,170,253
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Research and development expenses represented:

B %5 Rk B o (A8

Raw materials and consumables used R B &R
Employee benefit expenses BERBF XL

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Wages and bonuses TEREEL

Pension costs — defined contribution plans (a) E{?kEJZZIK TEME
Other social security costs H A4 RACA
Share options granted to directors RTES CHBRE
Other allowances and benefits H Ath 2 Bh K 4@ 7

BEHEE DB
EEEARRK
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
6,924
25,014
31,938
EEEABEX
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
390,578 341,082
KET 8 (@) 13,642 12,587
16,482 12,742
— 3,334
13,060 9,428
433,762 379,173

(@ Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contributes funds
which are calculated as 10%-20% (2014: 10%—-20%) of the
average employee salary for the year as agreed by local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

@ AEEFEHBARNEEERES
B 5 T IERTE I REERE
BEHRFERSE - AEENFH
[ OlEER/NICTR - 8- ys EIE il el )
BEFAFEHFHH10%-20%
(20144 : 10%-20%) =+ & 1) 858
Mzt 2 UAE B BIKE
FligftES -

133



134

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81 %5 Rk B o (4B

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 include four
(2014: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 33. The emoluments paid to the
remaining one (2014: one) individual during year are as

8 EEEFPA X

b) EEESHFMAL

H ZE2015F12A31B EFE R
EEREREeMEALEENE
(2014F :UZ)EZ  EB& B
EAKI 3PN RE DT - REF
NEH—ZQ04F: —F)&e

follows: FMATHBemT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FH&T

Wages, salaries, allowance and IE %o RAEREMEN

other benefits 762
Bonus TEAL 1,655
Contributions to pension plans IR B ET I -
2,417

The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the following
bands:

AEHBESHFMA T FHOES
TFETHNER

2015 2014

Emolument bands B < 48 B
HK$2,000,001 —HK$2,500,000

HK$2,500,001 —HK$3,000,000

2,000,001 7% 7T 2 2,500,0007% 7T
2,500,001 & 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T
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10

FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET 9 WMEWA(RAE)—FHE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FBT
Interest income: M BEHA :
— Interest income on bank deposits — IRITHFREF B WA 5,709 2,995
— Interest income on available-for-sale —AHEENEREERN
financial assets B A 4,012 1,197
9,721 4,192
Interest expenses: MEMRAY
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE (4,901) (5,122)
Finance income/(costs) — net BEWA(BRA) — F58 4,820 (930)
/=
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 R HMAX
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current income tax B EA AT 15 ¢
— PRC corporate income tax — AR EMREHR 31,128 36,774
— PRC corporate income tax over-provided =~ — 381 4F [ HEZE 5T 12 1Y
in previous years R EREH (7,286) (3,850)
Deferred income tax (Note 26) EEFTS L (B 7F26) 3,683 3,605
27,525 36,529
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within
the Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering the
available tax benefits. The applicable CIT rate is 25% (2014
25%). TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited and TK Precision Plastics
(S2) Limited, subsidiaries of the Group, were recognised as
“New and High Technology Enterprise” and thus enjoy a
preferential CIT rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016 and 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017,
respectively.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, a
withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the immediate
holding companies outside the PRC when their PRC
subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits earned after 1
January 2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) income
tax

No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI during
the year (2014: nil).

10 FRIBRBE X @

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

FEHEMEN

ARARFAERETMAILA—
MEHREBERAR] Al AR
REREBMRASESHER -

PEEERSHR(hERR
)
TEMSHIIEASBERNRFE
MK E RS E AR ERT
AMER B REt R AT ESHR
HEBERBREFRENBBEERG
HomAREMSBEE R25%
(20144 : 25%) « N & @ 2 [ &
RAIRIEAECRIDER AR R
FOIHBENEBORI) BR A A
WREA I @HEMEE] D
B B2014%F1 818 £20164F12
A31HHM K201541A18 &
201712 A31E HM = A15%
R EMEHERRE -

FEEAFREH

RIESEMB L 820084 1
A1B R EF BB INEFIER
N A B B A /) 2008 4F 1
A1B% % 8 5t BRE A & F &
ERRE AISHZEEEERA
A BUURI10% K TBHI AT R - H
BB ARNEREIERARRE
BRI WA R B EFEER L
M BIEO LS THRE A
HE5% M BIE TR EBMENME
i o

KABELBHSREHR

B I AN 5% [ 70 4F 19 7E 5L U R T BY
ETEBRASHBEA  SALE
AREBRERESHNMENER
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10 ITEHEBEXXw
(e) Taxation on the Group’s profit (e) AEE &N

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs 7N £ B B BT 1S T AT s A BT A AR Y
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the MIEIPAN T &EMmEE A E
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due ARERBHMNO FEE ET MK

to the following: EMEANERSEFAER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Profit before income tax b BT 15 7 B s A 214,613 190,452

Tax calculated at corporate income tax rate 1£25% &9 A XS5

of 25% Tt & 53,653 47,613
Effects of: TH|&IEH S E

— Different tax rates applied —HRATRE (11,739) —
— Income not subject to tax — BERT WA (10,294) (11,687)
— Accelerated deduction of research — i E B A Ntk

and development expenses (2,585) —
— Tax losses not recognised — KA TEEIE 1,817 272
— Expenses not deductible for tax — FA[ IR 682 906
— Over provision in prior years —BEFEREEE (7,286) (3,850)
— Withholding income tax — BB 3,277 3,275

27,525 36,529
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year.

11 BRER

(a)

B

500 AN B R T A A 4 0 R
DA £ 2 1T % B 0 M A F
B -

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7~ A & # B A JE {5 3% 7

(HK$'000) (FA&mL)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares issued (thousands)

(TR

EBTE AR INEF

Basic earnings per share (HK$)

BREAEN (BT

2015 2014
187,088 153,923
826,600 825,577

0.23 0.19

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: share options. The number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options less
the number of shares that could have been issued at fair
value (determined as the average market share price of the
Company’s shares) for the same amount of proceed are
share issues for no consideration which causes dilution to
earnings per share. During the year, the outstanding share
options do not have any material dilutive impact. Therefore,
the diluted earnings per share of the Company approximates
the basic earnings per share.

(b)

(b) #F

BREBRMNDARREBIAE
BEBEEBRRE REFER
17 £ 4N & 38 B b0 4 F 25 AR BET
B-ARAE-—HELEBEER
B BERRHE - BRARTT B AR
BEETZBROEE  BAERAE
RBBEMBREAMERIAE
(BERARAKRMDZWHFY
BE)ZETZRNDEB  FRE
BET BN BEZETENE
HERANELEE - FR  ®
RITEZBRESEEFMERNSE
BREE A AR BREE
BNESRERRMNEE -
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12 [ B 2 7

TXANR2015F12 3B T BB

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2015, all of which are limited liability companies:

RAI(BABBRAB)IIK

Place of Principal activities and Particulars of issued
Company name incorporation place of operation share capital Interest held
NEER R Sz s B TEEBRKE BRITRAFE s
TK Industrial Holdings Limited BVI Investment holding/PRC 50,000 ordinary shares of *100%
1 USD each
EEREaHES REER/FE 50,000 % & IR E &
1ETHE AR
TK International (BVI) Limited BVI Trading of plastic product 100 ordinary shares of 100%
and molds/PRC 1 USD each
RERZHE ZBRELRER 100 TR EE
g5,/ HH 1ETHEBR
TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited  PRC Manufacture of Paid in capital of 100%
plastic products/PRC HK$10,000,000
RIZBHmEMNBRAA H BEERBEL/HE EHANR
10,000,000/% 7T
TK Mold (S2) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of 100%
HK$132,000,000
RIRACRIDERDA i BASHE/HE EHER
132,000,000 7T
YD Mold (S2) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of 100%
HK$10,000,000
HREA(RINBRRA 1 BARE/HE BEHEX
10,000,000/ 7T
TK Precision Plastics (S2) Limited PRC Manufacture of Paid in capital of 100%
plastic products/PRC HK$166,000,000
RIRBEDTZ ORINEBR AR H BEERBEL/ HE EHANR
166,000,0007% 7T
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of Paid in capital of 100%
mold/Germany EUR25,600
=1 BABHE /EE B & 42560080 T
* Shares held directly by the Company. * ARBIEREIHBRG -
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ ¥ - BER R &

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor  Construction
Improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HENE KR KB
% BEREE REKRE "E ERIRE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TER FER TR
Year ended 31 December & £20144 12 A31H
2014 I: 353
Opening net book amount & 4R /¥ & 15,366 146,341 5,056 729 - 167,492
Currency tranlation ERER
differences (52) (159) (360) @) - (573)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U 8 — 5 fit B 2 7 - 588 70 - - 658
Other additions ERE 17,652 117,158 3,372 2,375 49,774 190,331
Disposals RE 9 (3,095) (56) (18) - (3,178)
Transfer # - 3,846 - - (3,846) -
Depreciation ik (7,102) (38,264) 2,100) (769) - (48,235)
Closing net book amount ~ F K BR /58 25,855 226,415 5,982 2,315 45,928 306,495
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 4318
Cost AR 39,084 487,798 21,774 3,294 45,928 597,878
Accumulated depreciation  Z i1 & (13,229) (261,383) (15,792) (979) - (291,383)
Net book amount EEFE 25,855 226,415 5,982 2,315 45,928 306,495
Year ended 31 December & Z2015% 12 F31 8
2015 I3
Opening net book amount 1B B F (E 25,855 226,415 5,082 2,315 45,928 306,495
Currency translation EREH
differences (1,438) (14,039) (296) (109) (3,302) (19,180)
Additions NE - - 4,646 3,432 111,933 120,011
Transfer 3 18,476 97,586 — - (116,062) -
Disposals RE (33) (1,334) ©) - - (1,379)
Depreciation e (9,275) (48,608) (3,326) (593) - (61,802)
Closing net book amount & R &R E # 1B 33,585 260,020 7,000 5,049 38,497 344,151
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A 31 A
Cost AR 54,784 537,901 24,241 6,548 38,497 661,971
Accumulated depreciation 25T E (21,199) (277,881) (17,241) (1,499) - (317,820)
Net book amount EHFE 33,585 260,020 7,000 5,049 38,497 344,151
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - BERZEw@m

(Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in WEYTHTABIESTYEYR -
the profit or loss:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Cost of sales $H & PN 39,793
Selling expenses 5 & R X 288
Administration expenses TR S 8,154

48,235
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 B EE

Contractual
Computer customer
Software relationships  Goodwill Total
=
BB EFB#& [EES et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHT FAT FAT FAET
At 1 January 2014 A2014F181H
Cost R A 10,999 — — 10,999
Accumulated amortisation S 5 (7,208) — — (7,208)
Net book amount REFE 3,791 — — 3,791
Year ended 31 December 2014 #H Z2014F12H31H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYERMEFE 3,791 - — 3,791
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — BB A A — 1,042 965 2,007
Currency translation differences & &, = %8 (13) 69) (73) (155)
Other additions HWARE 7,781 — — 7,781
Amortisation charge BT (3,588) (116) — (3,704)
Closing net book amount FEREEmBE 7,971 857 892 9,720
At 31 December 2014 A2014FE12831H
Cost X AR 18,767 973 892 20,632
Accumulated amortisation By (10,796) (116) — (10,912)
Net book amount BREFE 7,971 857 892 9,720
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 14 B EE @)
Contractual
Computer customer
software relationships  Goodwill Total
=
BB G BEF@E®# [GES ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015512H31 8
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHEEFE 7,971 857 892 9,720
Currency translation differences [ 3, Z= %8 (469) (101 (98) (668)
Additions NE 4,291 — — 4,291
Amortisation charge Y H (2,279) (279) — (2,558)
Closing net book amount FRIEEEE 9,514 477 794 10,785
At 31 December 2015 A2015%F12H31H
Cost B AR 16,743 858 794 18,395
Accumulated amortisation Z 5t B 5 (7,229) (381) — (7,610)
Net book amount BREEE 9,514 477 794 10,785
Amortisation charges were included in the following categories in BT R ABEENTIER -
profit or loss:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Administration expenses TEHX 3,588
Selling expenses HERX 116
3,704

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest in TK

Mold Germany GmbH in 2014.

7 2 EH2014F W B TK Mold Germany
GmbH 9 100% % 7~ # &5 i 2 & ©
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to TK Mold Germany
GmbH is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
forecasts prepared by management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

4 BILEE @

A B TK Mold Germany GmbHH) 1R & &
EEMmARE S EREFERER
HEAAET -ZAEREEREER
HERERFERABEIER - 8
RAREREEE - BBAFHMD
ReRENER TXAANGHFER

ARG EEAEEE RO EER
BT

2015
Net book value (HK$’000) EmEFE(TFET) 794
Net profit margin (%) FEF (%) 3%
Revenue growth rate (%) I A S8 K & (%) 2%
Discount rate (%) 8538 & (%) 16%

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment charge
was required after performing the impairment assessment for the
year (2014: nil).

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 December 2015, the Group
would still have recognised no impairment loss on the goodwill.

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2015, the
Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill.

RETHEAREK ARAEFRA
FAREARBERE (20145 : &)

MEETARRIBE R EEEIEE R 2015
F12A31AM BT ERI0%  AEE
T B BRERT M B R ERIE -

HBLEE R R2015F12 A31 B #E N2% -
AEBDEBERREIAEERES

18-
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CATEGORY
2015
HK$’000
FHET
Assets as per balance sheet EEEBRANEE
Loans and receivables: B IR
Trade and other receivables (excluding ZEE5REMERZECTERE
prepayments and tax recoverable) TERT FRIA KR AT B A IE ) 187,058
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEENZES 104,238
Restricted cash ZMWRHIES 1,176
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReZEED 319,951
612,423
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBERANAE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost: REERAFTEZBE:
Trade and other payables (excluding B REMEMNFEBECIEE
non-financial liabilities) Fe@mBaRE) 251,290
Bank borrowings RITEE 205,339

456,629

15 REHETNEMT A

2014
HK$’000
TAET

228,019
2,006

265,612

495,637

203,320
131,361

334,681
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16 INVENTORIES 16 F &
2015
HK$’000
FET
Raw materials R 44 % 26,551
Work in progress A 208,327
Finished goods 2 Ak @ 33,676
268,554
Less: allowance for impairment R (B (14,152)
254,402
The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as BEBREGBEESTWOT
follows:
2015
HK$°000
FET
At beginning of the year F40
Currency translation difference fE =58
Allowance for inventory obsolescence REFERE
At end of the year FxR

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year was
HK$1,176,627,000 (2014: HK$965,629,000).

2014
HK$’000
TAT

31,744
180,132
40,150

252,026
(12,907)

239,119

2014
HK$’000
TAET

4,741
©
8,172

12,907

FARNFABEXNRZ2FEXNEK A
1,176,627,0007% JT (2014 4F : 965,629,000

BIT) °
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2015
HK$’000
TER

Trade receivables

Less: allowance for impairment

B 5 WA
R B

186,227
(3,735)

Trade receivables, net
Bills receivable

Prepayments and deposits
Value-added tax recoverable
Export tax refund receivables

Advances to employees
Others

B 5 EWGRIR R
e R &
BRAFRARE S
A] Y Bl SR B
P AR R IR IR
RIEB B

H Al

182,492
94
27,867
18,916
10,705
2,801
1,671

244,546

(@) The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

17 EZ REMEWRE

2014
HK$’000
TAT

211,113
(5,505)

205,608
6,252
38,354
21,656
16,337
2,609
4,355

295,171

@ ZEZERUREBEZEEENATIE

W EHE

2015
HK$’000
TERT

UsD
RMB
EUR
HK$

E
AR
BT
BT

140,220
36,043
5,822
4,142

186,227

2014
HK$'000
THET

146,523
57,960
2,308
4,327

211,113
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b)  The credit period granted to customers is generally between
30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
from the date of sales is as follows:

17

EZ K HMmEWRKE @

b)) BTFEFPHEEHAENFI0E
AZH -BHERHEESE
WHRIBMBRE DTN T

Less than 3 months
More than 3 months but
not exceeding 1 year

More than 1 year

=EAAA

BE=EABITER—F

—F Nk

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH THT
182,170 202,996
3,737 7,925
320 192
186,227 211,113

The Group’s sales are made to various customers. While
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major
customers, these customers are reputable and with good

track record.

As at 31 December 2015, no trade receivables (2014: nil)
were past due but not impaired.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of HK$3,735,000
(2014: HK$5,505,000), were impaired and covered by

allowance.

AEBNHEDNHETRER
HACERBREFRETIER
FrExEEFPEEHE ki
BERIFOEELCHE -

A2015FE12 A31H - i |mE 5 &
U s IE (20144 - ) B @ EA X
LA e

MR2015F 128318 & 5 E I
X TE3,7350008 (20144 :
5,505,000 L) B RE Y B 1E
B -

Less than 3 months
More than 3 months but
not exceeding 1 year

More than 1 year

—EANRRA

BE=EAEITBEB—F

—F A E

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET
2,907

2,406

192

5,505
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

17 EZ K H b FE W FNIE )

(c) Allowance for impairment of trade

(c) EZBUBRBERERE

receivables

The movements on the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

i

/

ZRBKERERBES W

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET

5,505 3,774
5,902 9,517
(7,672) (7,786)

At beginning of the year F 47
Allowance for impairment oL 1B B
Reversal of allowance for impairment BEREREE
At end of the year FR

3,735 5,505

The creation and release of allowance for impairment have
been included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
primarily denominated in USD and RMB and the fair values of
trade and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk of trade and other receivables was the
carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security for
these receivables.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due and impaired assets.

HMEBRBZARERERDDGFAS
HEmEmRERPITRASXEAT -

R20154F & 2014F12 A31H » &
SREMBERFREZEAEEE
NETRARESE BESR
HihEWHRBZ AR ERERR
BERE -

R2015%F 2014912 A31H » &
SEE S REMERZKENREAKR
EERRK A &S8R gk e
ZHREE - AEETARZSE
W IR B I o

B 5 R E AWK IE ) A R R
TERECIHMEREREEE -
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18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18 AItHENEMEE
ASSETS
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year F 1) — —
Additions NE 307,671 292,762
Disposals BE (307,671) (292,762)
End of the year FR -
The available-for-sale financial assets represent investments in AL ENEREERIRERABAR
wealth management products managed by high credit quality R EEEERRMERTERNENE
commercial banks in the PRC with expected return range from 3.12% o TE B B ) E M F3.12% £3.25%
to 3.25% (2014: 3.12% to 3.25%) per annum and will mature within (20144 : 3.12% £ 3.25%) » I #§ A —
one year. FREHE -
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 BEeRREEEY
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Cash and bank balances W NLIBTES 321,127 266,526
Bank overdrafts |ITEX = (914)
Restricted cash PR IR & (1,176) -
319,951 265,612
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their RELRSESEYNARBEREERE

carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to credit risk. BEiEE BARAREERR -
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20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE

20 RARKR G = E

PREMIUM
Number of
ordinary
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: shares  Share capital
ERTRBZHNEER: ZEREYE g 2%
thousands HK$’'000
Fi b5
As at 31 December 2015 and R2015F12 4318 &
31 December 2014 201412 A31H 826,600 82,660
1 January 2014 20141 A1 H 800,000 80,000
Additions 10 26,600 2,660
31 December 2014 and 2014F12 A31 B &
31 December 2015 201512 H31H 826,600 82,660
(a) Movement in issued shares is as follows: @ BEETROEFHOT :
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
RGO E ZER IR 13 %18 #et
thousands HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T & FET FET FAET
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 818 800,000 80,000 208,143 288,143
Issuance of shares BTG 26,600 2,660 30,590 33,250
Share issuance costs [ 17 2 17 B AN - - (831) (831)
At 31 December 2014 and  A2014F12A31B K&
31 December 2015 2015%12A31H 826,600 82,660 237,902 320,562

All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

b)) FMAEHBTRODELEZEARFE

Eo
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21

22

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 29 December 2014, options over 6,660,000 shares were
granted to three directors of the Company at the exercise price of
HK$1.61 per share with no vesting condition. The exercise price of
the granted options was equal to the market price of the shares on
the date of the grant. The options are exercisable within three years
from the grant date. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

No share option is forfeited, exercised or expired subsequent to the
grant date.
The options over 6,660,000 shares outstanding as at 31 December

2015 have the expiry date of 28 December 2017 and exercise price
of HK$1.61 per share.

RETAINED EARNINGS

21 URBARER 2T

R2014F12 A29H * AR A7 8
BRBEG161BILHARAIZRES
% F 0] R EE A 6,660,000 5% i% 17 &
SEBRMt o ERE- DR TEREZ
AEEEARMAREAHEBZME
BE - EHERETARTABE=
FRIFE - AEBITELEZRHETE
TR B O L EEARRE -

MEBRENRDABRIOLU &
1T S E R

MR2015F12A31H & K 17 & 2
6,660,00017 fE f% # 7R 2017412 A28 H
B TEEAEEREM1.61E T -

22 RE &R

At 1 January R1HA1H
Profit for the year F N g Al
Dividends paid B E
Transfer to statutory reserves EBREETHRE

At 31 December W12 A31H

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
160,063 51,410
187,088 153,923
(66,128) (31,411)
(11,974) (13,859)
269,049 160,063
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23 OTHER RESERVES 23 Hfttf# s
Currency
Statutory Share option translation
reserves reserves reserve Total
EERE BREMRE E N #at
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET FHTT FHETT FAET
At 1 January 2014 201451818 7,918 — 22,795 30,7138
Transfer to statutory BB R A TRE
reserves 13,859 — — 13,859
Currency translation PE 5 = %8
differences — — (1,806) (1,806)
Share options scheme BB R AT 8 - 3,334 - 3,334
At 31 December 2014 R2014¥12H31H 21,777 3,334 20,989 46,100
At 1 January 2015 20151811 21,777 3,334 20,989 46,100
Transfer to statutory BEEETHEQ
reserves (a) 11,974 — — 11,974
Currency translation ME 3 ZE 58
differences — — (42,184) (42,184)
At 31 December 2015 R2015€12H31H 33,751 3,334 (21,195) 15,890
(a) Statutory reserves (@) ZERE
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the REFRBEBEERER K&
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make B BB B A R RE K B R g R
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after A BT DR 10% B B &= 5% F
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional when HeBRFEATEREED HAM
the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its BEARRB0% A L AT B E R
registered capital. Upon approval from the board of directors, EeRE—FEE REEETR
the statutory reserves can be used to offset accumulated B AERETARAEARSE

losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. FEMEARRRETBIE -
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24 BORROWINGS

Non-current
Bank borrowings
— secured (a)
— unsecured
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings

FEENHA
RITEE
— Fi#EH (@
— R

B IERNHEE 2R

Current

Bank overdrafts

Bank borrowings
— secured (a)
— unsecured

B 38
RITEX
RITEE
— (@)
— R

Total short-term bank borrowings

Current portion of non-current borrowings

RHRITIEE R

FAMEEZRE D

Total borrowings

BEAE

24 £ &

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

- 12,921

107,968 60,007
BB (39,917) (26,296)
68,051 46,632

914

57,519

97,371 58,433

39,917 26,296

137,288 84,729

205,339 131,361

(@ As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings amounting to
HK$97,371,000 (2014: HK$12,921,000) were secured over

the following:

@@ M2015F12A318  RTEE
97,371,0007% 7T (2014 4F : 12,921,000
BID) TIAA T S BEE TR

Plant and machinery
Bank deposits

BB B 1 25
BITER

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
- 13,756
104,238 2,006
104,238 15,762
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24 BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)

24 &8 @m)

2014
HK$’000
TAT

111,433

914
19,014

131,361

2014
HK$'000
TET

52,584
58,777

111,361
20,000

131,361
=

2014

HK$’000

TET

84,729
24,628

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in b BEZEEEENTIEES
the following currencies: A :
2015
HK$’000
FTHERT
HK$ BT 107,968
EUR BT 97,371
RMB ARH -
205,339
The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes and c REEAGXRBHEEERNF
the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are ZEPEBRAVNEFETEREH
as follows: T
2015
HK$’000
TERT
Borrowings at floating rates FEAEEE
6 months or less 61& A AR 205,339
6-12 months 61218 A =
205,339
Borrowings at fixed rates EMEBE =
Total BEt 205,339
The borrowings are repayable as follows: d EBEARATEHRAE
2015
HK$’000
FTHERT
Within 1 year 1FR 137,288
Between 1 and 2 years 1&224F 30,587
Between 2 and 5 years 254 37,464

205,339

22,004

131,361
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24 BORROWINGS (continued)

24 &8 @m)

EERBBRABOERINEF Y

(e) The effective weighted average interest rates at the balance

sheet dates are as follows:

©)

MEMT

2015

Bank borrowings denominated in:
HK$
RMB
EUR

AT EEHENRITEES

BT
ARE
BT

()  The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current

borrowings are as follows:

2014

2.86%
6.90%
0%

FAMEENREER AR ED

™

2015
HK$’000
TER

Carrying amounts

Fair value (level 2)

Weighted average discount rate
used for fair value (%)

fREE

ARE(FE2E)

DA EEINE
15 BE 3R (%)

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2015
HK$’000
TER

Trade payables

Deposits received from customers

Wages and staff welfare benefits payable

Accrual for expenses and other payables
(Note (a))

Other taxes payable

B 5 B 3R

BElEFPZE

ENTEREBRAN

J& &t 7 S e Al e A SRR
(it (@)

H &S BIR

230,769
152,968
62,035

20,521
5,687

471,980

2014
HK$’000
TAT

46,632
46,632

2.86%

25 ESREHMENFIE

2014
HK$'000
TAT
179,433
175,020

57,938

23,887
7,715

443,993
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@)

The amount mainly represented accruals for electricity and
Commission expenses.

Trade payables were denominated in the following currencies:

B %5 Rk B o (A8

25 BES R EMENRE @

@ HMHEXIBERERMBEHAXE
AHEA-

b BHEMNFBATINEEE:

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET

RMB AR
usD =
HKS$ BT
EUR BT
JPY S|

182,691 149,050
31,431 16,846
12,896 13,131

2,836 406
915 —

230,769 179,433

The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other
payables were primary denominated in RMB.

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

J& 5t S I Bt FE A SRR RO BR T
BEXIEUARKE-

© HEIEMNFKENRESNOT

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET

0-90 days 0Z90H
91-120 days 912 120H
121-365 days 1212365 H
Over 365 days @365 H

191,226 170,258
22,492 7,893
15,966 844

1,085 438

230,769 179,433
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81 %5 R By e ()

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 26 IELEFTBH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same
taxation authority. The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities

WEEEATEENGNAHAEE
HAMHEEEEE  BMfMRE—
MBEHBHBEZBELEMBH A gK
HEEFRMSHEERABE -BEERA

is as follows: EENMBESTWOT :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FiBT
Before offsetting 3K 85 Al
Deferred income tax assets: EEFTESREE :
— to be recovered after more than — R ER B 1218 A 18 Y [E
12 months 293
— to be recovered within 12 months — & 12M8 A Rk 4,580
4,873
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEMGHRAE:
— to be settled after more than 12 months —BRBBE12@EA1% (141) (151)
— to be settled within 12 months — B 12E A R & (10,661) 9,114)
(10,802) (9,265)
After offsetting K%
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHREE 6
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMGHAsE (4,398)

As at 31 December 2015, deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in the same entity,
to the extent of HK$4,036,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$4,867,000).

R2015F 12 A31H  RAEREENE
EAEREERELENBSHAREE M
K $8 4,036,000/ 7T (20144F 12 A 31
B : 4,867,000/ 7T) °
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 26 EILEFF B8 @)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as RILERMEELNBBEESHNOT -
follows:
Accelerated tax Accrued

Deferred income tax assets depreciation expenses Total
ELEFREBEE MEHERE EstB X wst

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAT FAET

As at 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 A81H 3,198 2,049 5,247
Currency translation differences [ i, = 58 (7) (5) (12)
Recognised in profit or loss RERRER (1,566) 1,204 (362)
As at 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 1,625 3,248 4,873
As at 1 January 2015 ©®2015%F1 A1 R
Currency translation differences  [& X, = %8
Recognised in profit or loss RIEBZEER

As at 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31H
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26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 26 IE I T 5 % @)
Revaluation
surplus in
related to
Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities income tax combination Total
¥BEotEE
EEFENHAE FEHAmEH ZEMER et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT T FAT
As at 1 January 2014 »®2014F1A1H (5,736) — (5,736)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— B R A - (308) (308)
Currency translation differences FEH ZR — 22 22
Recognised in profit or loss 18 25 BR FE R (3,275) 32 (3,243)
As at 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H (9,011) (254) (9,265)
As at 1 January 2015 R2015%F1 A1H (9,011) (254) (9,265)
Currency translation differences fE X Z%8 1,627 7 1,634
Recognised in profit or loss REBHERER (8,277) 106 (8,171)
As at 31 December 2015 R 20154 12 A 31 A (10,661) (141) (10,802)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry- BEREFEHMEET AMBBERIBESR
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits AEBRRERT EFNERMEE
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December ZHIEEBERAR KR2015F12
2015, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the A31H  ANEBEIW R AEBHIES
unused tax losses amounting to HK$6,599,000 (31 December #86,599,000/% st (2014F 12 A31 8 :
2014: HK$920,000) as its realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses 920,000 L) RIELEFRIBEEE - )
may be carried forward indefinitely. RREZBRE  AREE - BEEBIES

B EERYESE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 Rk B o (A8

27 R E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.03 (2014
Interim: HK$0.02) per ordinary share

% & B3 A% 0.0378 7T
(2014 F s HY : 0.02/8 L)

AT R B AR B 16,532

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.07 REREER0.07HE T

(2014: HK$0.05) per ordinary share (20144 : 0.057% L)

AT 2R REAR B 41,330
57,862
The dividends paid in 2015 and 2014 were HK$66,128,000 (HK$0.08 201556 K2014F S MR B % B &
per share) and HK$31,411,000 (HK$0.038 per share) respectively. 66,128,000 7T (& % Ix 19 0.08/7%8 7T )
A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 of 131,411,000 7T ( & % A% 15 0.038 7%
HK$0.07 per share, amounting to a total of HK$57,862,000, is to To) e ARBRBREEREAFRE L

be proposed at the coming annual general meeting.

BEHRNE E2015F 128318 1 F
EZHRBESROTE L WEBRBRTEA
57,862,000 JT °
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28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 28 EOtIRERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated @ BFREFHMEMNELEREHES
from operations: ZHEREK
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
Profit before income tax B T 15 B A1 5 A 214,613 190,452
Adjustments for: PR
Interest expenses (Note 9) MERXZ(K:F9) 4,901 5112
Interest income (Note 9) B A (Kfa£9) (9,721) (4,192)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERRHITE
equipment (Note 13) (H17£13) 61,802 48,235
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) B & E#4S (M3 14) 2,558 3,704
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEME - BEREZE
plant and equipment (Note 6) B8, (W) (B at6) 294 (262)
Allowance for inventory obsolescence BETERE K H7)
(Note 7) 1,880 8,172
(Reversal of )/allowance for account JRE T BR 3R (B B B )
receivables (Note 7) w(aE7) (1,770) 1,731
Changes in working capital: EEZEeEH:
Inventories FE (16,528) (62,2395)
Restricted cash ZMREIE S (1,176) -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H g SRR 52,046 (73,533)
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik H &~ ;U8 10,499 70,521

Cash generated from operations LEFSRE 319,398 187,705
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28 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 28 R ERERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b)  In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from b) REHBRESRERAN HEY
disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise: 2 . BmEREBERSZRESE:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net book amount disposed B EREFE 3,178
(Loss)/gain on disposal (Note 6) HE (BHR), W (B ite) 262
Proceeds from disposal HEMSRIE 3,440
29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29 AAREE
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant contingent MR2015F12A31H - AEBEWEEK
liabilities (31 December 2014: nil). HABE(2014F12A31H  #|&) -
30 COMMITMENTS 30 &= iIE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BEARAIE
The Group had the following capital commitments: AEEBNUTEARFPE:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Acquisitions of plant and equipment: BEME MR -
— Contracted but not provided for — BRI HEREREG 33,016
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30 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

30 FA¥E @)

(b) EEHEERE
o AR R A B A T
BEEYE  AEETARBE
EHEBETHRRRIAHRIE

follows: HENRBENOT :
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than one year —F R
— to related companies L NS 23,849
— to third parties —%=%3 4,805
28,654
Later than one year and not —FEHAEFN
later than five years
— to related companies o NS 3,307
— to third parties —%5=k5 6,595
9,902

38,556
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 BB AIRS
(@) Names and relationship (@) BEBREBRE
The following companies were related parties of the Group AR B ARE Z22015F12 A
that had transactions or balances with the Group for the year 1A FEEARERFERL 4
ended 31 December 2015: BB ANER BT
Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
BB BB BEREE 2R
TK Technology Holdings Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
HIREEEERAR AR E RS
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
FIRHR(RYNBRAF SRR EIEHINE R
TK Plastics (Shenzhen) Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
IERTERBORINERAF] v SRl ohgi]
(b) Transactions with related parties during the b) FREBELTZRS
year
Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Notes B Bff 3E21 A3 AT 72 A B B 5
21 and 33, the following transactions with related parties RGN AN & B F A B g
were undertaken by the Group during the year. FETHZZHITN -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Operating lease expenses paid (Note (j)) B EER K #0) 18,251
Rental deposits paid BENEEES 10,282
Note: B & -
() The amounts represented rental expenses for land and buildings ] ZABEEAR TR ERGER A
for factory and office purposes paid to TK Technology Holdings ac BIRE OFI) BER A AR
Ltd., TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. and TK Plastics (Shenzhen) FRITIBRBORI) B R AL AT
Ltd., which were determined with reference to independent TE TR ¢ A 2 i i £ b R 18
property valuation. FHHLHS 2B ELYE

B EEE °
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

()

(d)

Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

BB H X3 m

(c) EEEEAEFHMH

BEERBENREN ISR
ABZHMBHIMT -

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE& -HE RIEA 25,172
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R k& 5k 4~ — & 28 K5 2| 133
Share-based payments VARS 7 B B 2 13 5% 3,334
28,639

Indemnity (d) HBE

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group’s
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a result
of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of the land
and buildings owned by certain related companies by any
company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the relevant
authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of such land
and buildings.

B B R B R R K A8 Bl s 1 AR
SEEAKE QA (ER/EEA)
l‘i*ﬁﬁ%(ﬁﬁP@%)ﬁ}ﬁ%:Fﬁé
BAREAN L KRBT mE
I?EE’JFﬁﬁEﬁ/ﬁ%&E%{’Eﬂj
B ELfIEFEREE RE
RESEBARTERZST i
KRBT HEE % H 1S H R R
B HE A
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 32 ARAEEEBERRKM®
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY HEEE
As at 31 December
MR12H31H
2015 2014

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

bt aF FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZEE 221,055 234,940
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGRS 339,626 216,433
Other receivables o pE W B 898 1,005
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBES % B 263 101,195
Total current assets B & EERE 340,787 318,633
Total assets HmEE 561,842 553,573
Equity and liabilities ERRkEE
Equity attributable to owners of EATEEAEGLES

the company
Share capital N 82,660 82,660
Share premium A& 10 (B 412,424 412,424
Other reserves HAth 1 (a) 3,334 3,334
Retained earnings RE ST (@ 62,959 55,128
Total equity DB 561,377 553,546
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables Ho o FE < 3B 465 27
Total liabilities weE 465 27
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHE 561,842 553,573
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RArlBEAEKN2016F3H15H
Directors on 15 March 2016 and was signed on its behalf: KEREeE THERRES
Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
ZMR SEA
Director Director

B =
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Company

&2 @)

(@ AQ2TAFERE

32 f@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ

Retained Other

earnings reserves

REEEF H fth % 5

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FHET

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 14,971 3,334
Profit for the year FNHEF 71,568 -
Dividends % & (31,411) —
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H 55,128 3,334

At 1 January 2015
Profit for the year
Dividends

R2015F1 81 H
F R
LEgs)

55,128
73,959

(66,128)

At 31 December 2015

H2015F12HA31H

62,959
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

B %5 Rk B o (A8

WBESEIRESR

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EERFETHAEHS

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is

set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

Name

A

Executive Directors  #{T&=

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung 5 i 31 5% 4= (i)
Michael (i)

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TREBEE
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa o9& 3% 2 % 4

Independent non- BIYFHITES
executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy 487 F i+

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai ] B AR 4 A
Chung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong % £ 3¢ % 4

Fees

ik
HK$°000
TER

EEZENTETHRABNF M
FanE

HZE2015F 12831 B IEFE -
Employer’s

contribution
to retirement

Discretionary benefit
Salary bonus scheme Total
EBEW
BIKEF
e MEEA B &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TERT THER
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF BEEFINRER@
DIR ECTO RS (Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EERFTETHAENS
(Continued) (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (restated): HZE2014F 12 A31H IFFE (&
=75)
Estimated  Employer’s
money value  contribution
of other to retirement
Discretionary benefits benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus (Note (ii) scheme Total
E A1 F
B i E EE®
BEEE  RBAREF
e ik e BEEA (B aEG) T &I &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FART FHET FAT FAxT FART
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Pui Leung R — 2223 2,705 1,502 17 6,447
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung SREMEE
Michael (i) — 1,975 1,932 931 17 4,855
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE — 1,479 1,159 901 17 3,556
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa R 5L — 1,115 1,352 — 17 2,484
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy & F 8+ 232 — — — - 232
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung fa] B8 8 48 4 232 — — — - 232
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BN KA 232 — — - - 232
696 6,792 7,148 3,334 68 18,038
1] Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. () PEHNEENBEENITE »

(ii) Other benefits represent share options granted for the year ended

31 December 2014.

(i)  H 18 F 15 & £20144F 12 A 31
H 1k F JZ BT £ 1 19 58 R 4% -
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DlRECTORS (Continued)

(b) There was no directors’ retirement benefits, directors’

()

termination benefits, consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’services and no loans, quasi-
loans or other dealings entered into by the Group in favour of
any directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year (2014 : Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved for contracts amongst group companies and as
disclosed in Note 31, there was no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

B %5 Rk B o (A8

WBEEEFNRER@m

(b) & BERREESREMMA

()

FE=FRHAMNESRKEF
EFRIERBEF RRE R
EREE EEHIZEHEER
BMEETREAYHRANER  EE
REIAEBATLZEMRS
(20144 : 4) o

EENXZ REIEN
MEAK#ER

BEBEARBME L RMEEST AT
BEEIN  RERKFAEME
B MEFERNRB AT LEAR
SEXBEMEBEKR BARA
EENEPEERMEREBEK
BmmR 5 RHHEH -
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Five Year Financial Summary
EFMBEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET FAT FTHERT

Revenue A 781,750 1,095,985 1,197,852 1,338,920 1,606,205

Net profit for the Year RARER ANEMR
attributable to the owners 4 & 4% 7|
of the Company 84,488 135,193 121,348 153,923 187,088
As at 31 December
M12831H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FAET FAT FAT FAT FET

Total assets BwEE 769,772 950,877 955,456 1,137,434 1,300,219

Total liabilities waE 571,994 674,508 585,190 610,709 694,718

Total equity TSR 197,778 276,369 370,266 526,725 605,501

Notes: Bt -

1. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December 1. TR [F# F20144F 201512 H31 B IF F 2
2014 and 2015 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 FFBE HEEUR A EBR20144F 2015
December 2014 and 2015 are set out on pages 85 to 87 of this annual report. FI2ATHMEHEERBEHRAFRE

85 £87H -

2. The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 2. KEFEE 2201312 A31 HIEFEH & GF %
and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2013 48 N 2N 5 B R 20134 12 A31 A B9 & B E K
are set out in the 2013 annual report of the Group. B EE RN EF2013FHA -

3. The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 3. KEBEE Z2011F R2012F 1231 H 1 FZ

31 December 2011 and 2012 and of the consolidated assets and liabilities as at EFEMAEHEEUARR2011F R2012F 12 H
31 December 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from the Prospectus. STAMEHEER B EHBE T E 1B K
B

4. The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had 4. LB E RN EE SR EERZE
been in existence throughout these financial years. HHRFE—EFIERGEE -
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